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FOR RELEASE: IMMEDIATELY

FOR MOW INFORMATION CONTACT Robert L, Stevens. Chairman

610-526-2300 or

610-296-5539 (evening);

Bryn lMawrTrust ExecutiveVice PresidentResigns

BRYN MAWR, PA, March 5, 1999--Robem L. Stevens, Chairman, Btyn Mawr Bank Corporation

(NASDAQ:BMTC), announced today that Peter H. Havens, Executive Vice P~sident Of tile C0T0rati0n”5

principal subsidi~, The BW Mawr Trust Company, has resigned tiom tie Bank ad u a cOTOmte

duector for personal reasons,

Mr. Stevens stated: “Peter has headei up the Bank’s Investment Management and Trust Division since

May of 1995, spearheaded its outsm[ding advance, and will be greatly missed by us and our clients.”

Stevens added, “Senior Vice President Joseph H. Bachtiger, will oversee the trust and fiduciary

adminisuation and trust operations a(:tivities. Joe has been in our ~st adtninisuation area since 1969, and

has served as president of The Natiotlal Association of Estate Planners and Councils @AEPC). Richard 1.

Sichel, Senior Managing Director of Investment Counselors of Bryn Mawr, a department of The Bryn

Mawr Trust Company, will condnue as the chief investment officer and will assume responsibility for CDC

Capital Management, Inc. Rich bas ever 25 yews of investment management experience, is often quoted in

the most respeckd financial publications, and has been guest portfolio manager on nationally televised

financial programs. Under the guidarlce of these two fine professionals reporting to me, I am confident that

our outstanding investment petfotmance and service Ie\,el \vil I be maintained.”
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Bryn Mawr Bank Corporation
801 Lancaster Avenue

Bryn l*dawr, Pennsylvania 19010-3396

(610) 526-2300

FOR RELEASE:

FOR MORE INFORMATION CONTACT

IMMEDIATELY

Robert L. Stevens, Chairmm

610-526-2300 or

610-296-5539 (evening);

Joseph W, Rebl, Treasurer

610-526-2466 or 610-828-7798 (evening)

Bryn Mawr Bank Corporation Aut[~orizes Continuation ot Stock Repurchase Prograrr]

BRYN MAWR, PA, March 3, 1999–-The Board of Directors of B~n Mawr Bank Corporation (NASDAQ:

BMTC) has autborimd the continuati,~n of the stock repurchase program, initiated in March. of 1997 and

due to expire on March 31, 1999. Un{ier the continued program, the Corporation’s mmagement is

authorized to repurchase up to $6,50 C’,000, in aggregate, of the Corporation’s common stock, but not more

than 5% of the outstanding common stock as of February 28, i 999. me stock repurchase program is

scheduled to run from March 1, 1999 to March 31,2000, but can be disconttiued at any tinle.

According to Robert L. Stevens, Coq>oration chairman, “The Board of Duectors approved the continuation

of the stock repurchase program, because it benefits the Corporation and its shareholders by reducing the

dilution caused by the implementation of the Corporation’s stock option plans.”

Stevens continued, “The Corporatio~! repurchased a total of 164,800 shares during the two..year period

ending February 28, i 999, at a total :ost of $3,829,512.50. This more than offset the dilutive effect of stock

options exercised during this period. Cash will continue to be used to fund the program.”

As of December 31, 1998, the Corpf]ration had assets of $392 million and 4,303,818 shares of common

stock outstanding, and is headqutiered in Bryn Mawr, Pa., along with its principal subsidi~, The Bryn

Mawr Trust Company.
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THE YEAR IN REVIEW
1

IN 1998, BRYN NIALt’R B+NK CORPORYI”ION (:ONTIN(I;I.)

TO EN’IIANC:E I’1’s ,\tLIL[”rY ‘F() PROVIIIR 13(ISINF.SSI!S,

lNDIIIIIIIALS, FANIII.IES AND IJO1 INL)Y1’1ONS \\I’rl I ,\

COh[PLliTE SPIG’I’RLIN1 OF FINAN(; I/\L SE R\”l(:F.S I

INCl,~iI)ING LO.ANS, GHECKINIG A(:CO[[NI’S, (:,\SI [

hl.k.NAGELIEh”r, 1N7VBS’I’KIEN’I’ L[,\N.4(; ltk II?N’’l’, ES’[:Y1’1:

PLANNINTG> FIL)[CLkRY SE RVR:IS. T,\X PI,,\ NNINC, /\ I)VI(:lt

AN1) ‘rAxPRF,P.kR.KrIoN”. THII COI<IJOR,II’ION’S

CAP,IBI[.,11’IES \fJRRE EN HANT[:l:D I;Y ‘1’1111<\l)I)l’1’loN OF

HIGliIY QLIA1.lFIB:I) Sr.kFF klEP!l BKRS, ‘1’11[; [lP(; R.\l)IN(; OF

‘rHI? SK ILl,S OF OLJR EXISI’lNG SI:IFI;, ‘1’IIb:

INI’RO1)[ICTION OF NR\V SZRV[(:ItS, ,\Ni) ‘1’IIF. \l)l)l’1’ION

OF NE\V ,\ND SITPIJORTING INI’rItYI’l\’12S.



NEJY ACQUISITIONS

In November, B~n hf~}vr B~nk Corporation ann(:,unced its intention to

acquire JoseplI \V. Roskos & CrI., J ~vell-knotvn sf:countiIIg firnl th~t

provides f~~nlily business office services including accotlntin~,

consulting, CJXservices, arid fiduciary support for high-net-worth

individuals and Fan~ilies. The or~anization, }vhich l~as a staff of t\ve!lty-

fivc, traces its roots hack t> the earliest part of the tLvcIlticdl eclltllry.

Joseph \Y. Roskos, CPA, h.rs served us its presitie[]t since 1991. He

holds a BS in accounting fron~ Syracuse Uni~;ersit:~, a JD fronl TeI1lple

Universit)- La\v School, ~r,d a hfaster of La}vs in “~axatior~, frotl~

VIIIanuwa L~\v SchIJ[d. In Janua~ of 1999, in the liank’s Centennial

\Vlng, hIr. Roskos presented, for a select group [>f Bryn hlawr Trust

custonlers, a progranl thtit outlined the scc)pe of the spccialtized scr~, ices

a~,aiktblc through the Rosl:os urganiz~ti[]n.

Early in 1999. Bryn N[al!,r Bank Corporation anno[Jnced the s[lccessf[!l

con]pletiun of the ucquisit:on of CDC Capirdl hIan#gettlcnt, Inc., an

investment advisor> firn~ registered ~vith the L1nited States Securities

and Exchange C[jn>nlissio]l. CDC bas in excess of$200 n~illion under

adviscnlent ~nd mainr~ins str~tegic business alliarlccs ~vith Cal Ian

Associates Independent Advisor Group ~nd the SEI Investment Select

Advisor Council. CalI~n Associates of San Francisco, is one of the world’s

preen] inenc investment co~~st~iting firms, SEI, with he~dqwarters in

Oaks, PA, offers a variety of services for the investll~ent managenlent

and trust industr}-. \J’ith CI)C, the Corporation ha:} acquired the

expertise to bring our clients the same investment processes and global

specialist mone>, nl~lla~ement #s used hy the nati<;,n’s largest pools of

assets. Founded in 1993, CDC is headed up by J, !~lichac[ Devine.

Nornlan S. hlacQueett, III. beads up CDC’S client ser~,ices.
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LE.AIIERSIIII’ IN COhIhfERcI,.iL REAL

EsT,i~E LEN DIN[;

Due to the efforts of a tezm of our commercial lending professionals,

B~n hfawr Trust has bcc.>mc the lead bank in a co-operative financing

venture for a ne!~, multi-sports center in Dow,ningto~?n, Pennsyl\, ania,

that provides complete indoor and outdoor facilities for a variety of

sports fur instr[tction, leagues, camps, clinics and tournaments. The

center includes fm!r priwate meeting rooms, a viewing mezzanine,

a full-service restaurant, a retail specialty sporting g:]ods store, and a sports

medicine center. Shxring rhe client’s vision, our Ierlding officers obtained

the necessary support froln three other banks which participated in the

financing of this project,
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RuBERr hf. FEDURIS, JCISK PII \V, ROSKUS & (;cI,

LORRAINE T. “J:\NE” GAR1>NER, IN SLIU4Ni:E (:( II INSRI. I.(IR& (II flnvN hl,!\YR

JLTNE Nl, l:,\ I.coNE, BANKING OP&RvrIL,Ns
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R, Ross C<IL LINS, JR., ‘1’Ax CUL’NSELL(IRS UP BR\N L1.%IvR
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IklPROVI~G T~{E JJJORKPLACE

in order to crcatc a \vorking environment \vherc people are more cre-

ative, effective, intcr~ctive and satisfied, the BaI1k has elllpioyed the

semices of a pr[>fessi oral consulting firn]. In September, 233 employees

completed a I$,orking environment cltlcstionnaire. ‘“rtven~-five employees

were persom~lly intcrvic}!, cd, and senior nlamagetllent p:lrticipated in a

special trdining session. The results of chcse fiacc.-g~therin~ efforts ~vere

carefully analyzed by the outside experts. ‘rhe pr[]cess !~,as designed to

provide a baseline fronl Ivhich B~n Nlav,,r Trust catl inlpro!,e perfor]l~ancc,

beccm~e more con]petitive. ,nd prnvide a more n~c)nittgful !,ork life for all

employ ees. .4 pilot pr[>gram, “IVorking Together to Build a Better Bhfl:”

kicked off in Fe bru~ry 1999, to focus on organiza Li{mal develol>ment.

This pr(}rcss \vill continue throughout the year.

~.ACII. ITIES [J FGRAOES

In October, Investment C ollnse[lors c]f Bryn hl~~,,r moved fIon~ its

r~ther cramped q[]~rters at ‘r\vo T(]~;-er Bridge in [;onshcjhuckcn to

offices in the ne!vly constructed Four T[~~!,er Bridge in \Vest

C{]nsh[]hockcn. ‘1’he nc~v office space features ni]~e private offices, t~v(.>

handsome cc)nfercllce roolns, a file roonl, JVeli-appointed recepti(m

area, ~nd efficient open office area for support sta[~.

During 1998, our lVest Canskobocken service office, at One ‘lo\rer

Bridge, >vas ck~sed down tenlpomrily, exl~lnded, Refurbished, and

reopened as # full ser}, ice branch office ~vich teller and banking seriiccs

available five days a tvcek,

h~e~v AThl’s }vcre installed at the Paoli and t~~ynne$vood branches. “rhe

machines tvill eventually I,a$e the capability to cash checks, dispense

coins, coupons ~nd pnsmgc stdIn~>s. The entire drive-up f~cility at the

\Tynnetv(,od branch }vas upgraded.

The third fl[]or (If the hcadqllarters building at Br!n hla~~,r, which for-

merly- huuscd the old buardrc]om, an additional co]-~ferertcc ro[jm, and

ladies Iotlnge, \VJS completely renovated. The handsomely appointed

area features five pritate ofticcs, a conference r<)un>,and a reception arcd.

TJX Counscli[}rs of Bqn hl~Jvr moved into these quarters in August.
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EYE ON T1l~ ~LITCJRE

Fronl eve~ possible as[]ect—stsff expcrtisc, tcch[]{,l(~Ky, v~riety tnd

qua]ity l~f services Offered—nlamagcmcllt is t~king the ncccssurv SCCp S

to [>[o!,idc the rapacity to tllect the challenges to he FJCCCIill the t’ltt~lrc

The gt]iding principle is \ve go for\ward \vill be t,, serve dIc (]cst illccr.
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SELECTED FINANCtAL DATA

(if, ,b.m.ti, c..qtjrshare.nd,?er rhszre At.)

1998 1997 1996 1995 1994
$ 26.438 s 25,29? $ 24,337 $ 23,617 $ 20,378 I

5,976 6,929 6>490 7,246 5,077
20,462 18,368 17,847 16,371 15301

150 200 350 500 500
20,312 18,168 17,497 15,871 14,8[11
14,720 11,749 10,423 9,197 8,383
24,695 20,837 18>978 18,325 17,535
10.337 9,080 8,942 6,743 5,64~1

3,480 2,950 2,900 2,100 1,600

$ 6,857 $ 6,130 $ 6,042 $ 4,643 $ 4,04!I

$ 1.58 $ 1.40 $ 1.38 $ 1.06 $ 0.93

$ 1.51 $ !.34 1,33 $ 1.04 $ 0,92

$ 0.465 $ 0,36 ; 0,46 $ 0.25 $ [),16
4,327,297 4,392,162 4,385,o94 4,377,o56 4,367,8oo

225,708 203,660 151,698 90,740 26352
4,553,005 4,595,822 4,536,792 4,467.796 4,394,152

(i. th.us.d)

1998 1997 1996 1995

$ 391,840 $ 374,210

1994

$345,747 $354>956 $ .333,180

357,683 327,942 305,911 314,u89 298,385
342357 328,806 303,183 317,601 30 I337

42,221 39,349 35,808 31,903 27,146

1998 I 997 1996 1995 1994

1.91% 1.74% 1.79%
17.06% 16,45% 18.16?.
11.17% 10,60?6 9.88°M

29.43% 25,7 1% 33.339h

1,3990 1,26°.
15.79V. I 5,7096
8.79V0 8,06%

23.58°% 17,57.4



I MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The following is a discmsion of the consolidated results of oper-

ations of B,Yr, Mawr Bank Corporation and its subsidiaries (the

c<Corporzrion”) for eaci] of tbe three years in the period ended

Dtcember 31, 1998, ~ WC]]as the financial =ondition of rhc

Corporation as of Dcccmbcr 31, 1998 and 1997. The Bryn

Mawr Trust Company (the ‘<Bank”), TU Cou”scllors of Bryn

hlawr, Inc. (C’TCBM) and The Bryn Mawr Trust Company

U.rsey), Ltd. (“BMTC (Jersey)”) are wholly-owned s“hsidiaries

of the Corporation, Insurance Counselors of Bryr! Mawr, IIIC.

(“ICBM”) is ~ wholly-c,w”cd subsidiary of [be Balk. This dis-

cussion should be read in ‘conjunction with the Cc>rporation’s

consolidated financial statements beginni,lg on paj<c 18,

Significant Items For 1998

Stock Repurchase Program Offsets PotentiaJ Dilution of EPS

During 1997, the Corporation established a stock repurch:ls~

program, authorizing ~,anageme”c t. repurchase up co 50h of

the then uutstarl&lng ccmmon shares of the Corporation, tlot to

exceed $4,000,000 (the “Stock Repurchase Progrzrn”). During

1998, the Corporation repurchased 99,9oo shares (If the

Corpocatiun’s common stock, at z cost of $2,519,000, The

acquisition of these shares more than offset the diluti>c effect of

rhc issuance of 32,500 [Lew common shares either through the

Corporation’s stock option plan or the iss”ancc of stock in pay.

ment of the Corporario{]’s directors’ retainer for 1998. While net

income grew by 120/o o, cr 1997’s net i“comc, both b~ic arid

diluted e.rnings per sha:c were up 139” over 1997,

Growth of Non-interest Revenue Smeams

A strzcegic god of the Corporacio” =onti”ucs ro he providi,)g its

cusromcr base >vith fin=lcial services and products that are

designed to meet the ev<r cvolvi”g needs of the Corporario,is

customers, The addition of new financial services ald products

creates new sources of non-interest revenue. In July 1997, the

Corporation established TCBM to provide tax planning ser,i’cs

to its customer base, the:eby i~lcreasing its t,o”-incercst rcven”c

strezms. In January 1998, the Bank established ICBM to pro-

vide insurance services and produ’cs to irs customers, During

{he fourth quarter of 19!~8, the Corporation c~t~blishcd BMTC

(Jersey), providing offshc,re rr”st services to the Ban~s
I“vcstmenr bfanagcment al~d Trust cuscomers. The Bank’s

Investment hfan~emcn[ and Trust Iinc of business afso

expanded it’s business btie, gro}ving assets under m~nagement

by 26Y0, from $1,666,472,000 at Dc=embcr 31, 19!17 to

$2,101,251,000 at Dece,nher 31, 1998.

The Corporation’s other [Ion-interest rclared line of business,

BMT Mortgage Compary, a division of the Bank, dedicated to

the origination and sale cf residential morcgzge loans to the

secondary mortgage marl:et, also showed significant growth in

reven”c streams for 1998, compared co 1997, h residential

nlortgage interest rates decreased during 1998, BMT hlortgi~gt.

Company generated significant rcfinxn’illg opporttxniries i“ rcsi.

dentid mortgage Iendi”g, originating and selling $134,676,000

in residcntizl morcgzge loans in 1998, a 77% increase ove[

$75,874,000 sold in 1997, This increze in loan sale zcci,,i~
increased the rclared “cr gains and fees car”ed on tbesc sales by

$429,000 or 57% over similar re>enucs for 1997.

Exclusive of gains on the sde of orbcr real esca.ce oul>cd

(“C) REC)”), rcportrd in botb peri,,ds, the grow[b in non.int.rest

revenues resuhcd i“ an i“crea.se in the perccn cage of rlon-irltcresr

revenues earned in 1998, compared to total revenues, to 4 10%

from 38°A for 1997,

Ditidend Increase

Bacd on a continued grov.~h i“ lg:cord carrli”gs, the

Corporation increased its qwartcr[:; dividend payment fur 1998

by 33LY0, from $0.09 per share in [997 co $0,12 per sbarc in

1998. These per share zmounts have bten restated to rctlccr the

effect of a 2-for- 1 stock split, effc’civc on September 1, 1998,

The Cocporatio”’S dividend payout ratio ,VAS29.43?/” of bisic

earnings per share for 1998, =omparcd co 25,7 I Yo fur 1997.

R-ufts Of Operations

Overview

The Corporation rtported a 120h i.ncrea.sc in net income of

$6,857,000 for cbe yc.r ended December.31, 1998, . record

year for Corporation earnings, Net income fo~ 1997 amounted

to $6,130,000.

During 1997, the Financial Accounting Standards Board

(“FAsB”) issued Statement on Fim.~ncial Accou[lting Std,,dard

No, 128, “Earnings per Share” VSI?AS No. 128”). SFAS No,

128 requires rbe compucztion of b,,tb bwic e~r”ings per share

and diluted earnings per slvare. Bzsic earnings per share is com-

puced by dividing chc Corporation’s net income (n”mrcltor) hy

rhc weighted-a,crage number of cummo” sbarcs outsra”ding for

the period (denominator). Diluci>,e eartlings per share tldds [o

the weighted-average outsrandi”g r.umbec of ,h~res the “umbcc

of additional common shares that ivo”ld b~ve been “utstandirlg

if the dlluti>,e common shares bad Ibec{l issued, The dilutive

common sbarcs added to the weighted-average shares outsta[tding

,vere 225,708 and 203,660 for 1998 a“d 1997, rcspecti},ely,

Earnings pcr common share amourtcd to $1.58 in 1998, a 13%

increase o~,cr $1.40 for 1997. Ear”i”gs per common share,

assuming dilution were $1,5 I and :; 1.34 for 1998 and 1997,

respeccivcl y

These record czrnings results for 1998 wert due primlri[y to a

200h i“’reasc in 1“>.cstme”t Mz”ag:ment and Trust revenues

o>,er similar rel,enucs for I 997, an 11 0/0 i“creze in n~t interest

income and, \vith tbc exccptio” of OREO related rc,,enucs. sO
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non-inctrest revenue <creams incrcascd over their respective levels

for 1997. Net interest income gre\v $2,094,000 over 1997

levels. Exclusi>,t of O WO related revenues, total other income

increased hy $3,126,000 or 270/. ovtr similar rc,e”ues Fc,r 1997.

Other expenses il~cre~sed $3,858,000 or 190h in 1998, com-

pared co 1997. This increase in other expense is pamially due to

the addition of both TCBM a“d ICBM. TCBM. operated for

the l-t six months of 1997 and lCBM wx “or in operation

during 1997.

Rccurn on average Msets for the year incre=cd c<>1,91% from

1.749” in 1997, while rcrurn on a~,erage equity Ii,r 1998 was

17.06% conlpared to 16,45v0 in 1997,

Famings Performance

Lines of Business

The Corporation conrinues co have three significant business

lines from which it derives its earnings. Its core business line is

the Banking line of bllsilless. Additional earning$ streams are

received from its Inve:,tment Management and Tiust Ii”e of

business and its Mort~~c Banhng line of husintss,

Folloning is a segmentation analysis of the resufts of opcratio”s

for those Ii”es of busir,css for 1998 and 1997:

TMLE 1- Lines Of Business Anafysis

N., ;“1.,=1 h..”,. $20,103 $ — $ 356 $3 $ 20,462
k= 1..” I..spm,i, <o., ., ,50 — o 0 ~~~
N., hr,w,, &t,

10= 10SSprovision ,,, ,, 19,953 0 356 3 20,312
Otherincome:

Fe, forkw,f”,mt m-m..,
mdmtstim, ,, .,,.. ,, 0 J,272 — — 9,272

se-c. .hag.s on

depo,kaccount,. ., 1,,69 — — — 1,169
OA.r f.<, md

smicc.hages 571 — I,z09 — 1,780
N<tgainon,deoflom,, . . . 35 _ 783 _ ~,~
Gain.,, ,de of oth.r

red <stir, owl,’d. 224 _ — _ ZZ4
ocher .Yr.ti”g i,,,”.,, ., 63, — — ,,o~~ ,,,,~

Total otker inc..,., ., 2,630 9,272 1,992 [,07’3
O*., Upe.w

14,9?3

Sdmi=s—regdu., 6,489 2,863 417 520 10,289
Sdwiwtker 1,692 386 117 I*O *,37s
F“ng=b.”.sc. ., ,,232 549 ,4 53 *,yo*
Occupant ...,..,,.,.,.. 2,793 422 ‘2 I*O 3,457
other .Per,,i”g CXp.ns,,, 5,003 898 400 618 6,919

Tod o,b<,,XP<,U.S.,., ,., 17,209 5,1,8 1,070 1,551 24,948

+.”[ P~t, rl.~i. $5374 S4,154 $1,278 I$469) $10,337

% .F=gn,.,,r ~rofi, ., 52% 40% ,*VQ .4% ,Ooy.

Other CXpc”,c,
s,lari?s—l%ular ., 1.858 2,41f 23f ~)(, *,(,(,{
sd.,i.,-,h,r, ., 1,347 215 ~)j — 1,,,55
Fringcben<fiu,..,.,,,. 1,237 301 ,%5 a ,,,<, [
O,<upancy, 2,f43 36, ,,<, ~~,< ,~,,(,<,
[),hc, “Perl,i”g ,,pc.s, ., 4,730 7.3.3 233 166 5,862

Total ,>,h,r.XF,,.C> 15,715 4,225 6’<5 4,,3 2,,,,-”

stKmenr~r,,lic(1<>,,) $4,6,13 $.1,473 $, ,{,.>7 \$t23) $,1,080

v. .fscgmc. r~,’,fi,, 52,,, 38,0 , ,!.6 .,...,, ,“,)!,.,,

Bvn MZW,B=k C.r(,.t.tio.. T= Coun=ilors.( Brynhi,wr, [,,.,, ln,t,c.t>.cc.u,,,cll.r,
.fBryn N[.w,, [“,, ,nd Tk, Bvn hl.wr Tin,, Con,p,,,) o,~y,, L,d, h,,, 1>..,,,W,%.,,4
in ,!11O*,,,

.R,,L,,,,$,,//o, ca,,,~drz t;”, ).P.,,J,

The tab]. reflects operating profits of ~lch litle of business

before income taxes.

Each significant business segmenl reported gro~d] in scgnlent

profits for 1998, compared to 1Y77. There ws a strong incrc~se

in both Investment Matl~emcnt a“d Trust segnlenc pr,, fits

and the Mortg~ge Bank”g line’s :scgmtnc prt,firs i“ 1998, co”].

pared to 1997, up 20% and 230A, respc’rively, The Bankng

line’s segment profits grew by 15?’ from 199? levels, The

Ba”ki”g scgme”r’s percentage ~f:,cgc~c”t pr<,fics rcmait]cd Ic%,el

at 52% for both 1998 and 1997, In>estnlcnt Lfznagemenr ~nd
Trust’s pcrcentag. of segment profit i“c~cascd from 3896 in 1997

co 400/0 in 1998. The Mortgage Ba,Iking scgme”t’s sh~re of seg.

mcnr profits increased fro”, 11O/. in 1997 to 120/0 in 1998,

Banking Lint ofBusint~~

The Banks avercgc outstanding ezrning asscrs of $328,605,000

increased 40/0 from $315,548,000 for 1997, Averdge outstanding

Ioms grew by 69” in 1998, The largest i“creasc ill average our-

stand~”g loans o’curred i“ commercial ~nd industrial loans, up

$13,713,000 or 19~o over 1997 average bal,n=es. Commercial
mortgdge loans gretv by $10,589,000 or 32°h o},cr 1997 ~~erage

bdan’cs znd average outstanding construction loans rose by

$4,725,000 or 54°A over similar :~verage outstdrlding bal~nces

for 1997. Offsetting these increases were decreases in the avcvage
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outsrznding balances of che Banks consumer lo~n portfolio,

down $9,326,000 or 89, from 1997> average ours~mding bal-

ances and residential mcrtg~e loans, down by $4,179,000 or
24y0. 1,owcr consumer I>.” demand, mused by increased compe-

tition from automobile mz”ufacturers for new automobile loans

was primarily responsible: for the reduction in average outstand-

ing Ioa”s in the consum:r loan portfolio in 1998, while increxcd

salw of residential mortgage loans to the secondary morrgagc

loan market was responsible for the decrease in x~,erage outstand-

ing residential mortgage loans. The ai,erage our.stan{lng bdmces

of federal funds sold decre~ed by 8°A in 1998 compared to 1997

levels. Avcr~gc outstanding investments decreased b:{ 5% for

1998, compared to 19w, Average outstanding totaf deposits

increased 20A in 1998 ccmpzred to 1997. Tbc largtst incccasr

occurred in the Bank’s k.w coscing NOW accounc balances ~“d

non-interest be~~i]lg denjand deposits, up $10,968,000 or 150/f

ind $6,697,000 or 90/., respectively, P~rcidly offsetting these

increa.scs ~v~ a $12,289,,)00 or 170/. decreae in the average out-

standing balances of higher costil]g certificates of deposit

(“CD;). Average outstal]ding savings deposits incrc~sed 370 or

$1,252,000, The cl~mge in the mix of average outstanding
dcposics, away from bigk,rr costing CDS into low costing NOW

and savings deposits and non-interest hewing demand depo> its,

led to a dccreasc in interest expense and zn incre~e in the IICr

inceresc margin ro 5.99Yc i“ 1998 from 5.59°h for 1997. An

expanded discussion of r,et inccresc income follows under cbe sec-

tion c“cidcd “Nec Intere:t Income. ”

Other income increased by 2% in 1998 compared co 1997,

Exclusive of OWO gains, reported i“ ea’b period, totzl other

income for the Bmking ,egmenc in’reased by 90/o,

Totaf other expenses of t,c Banking line of business incrcasc.d

10OA i“ 1998 compaced 01997 levels, Overall, the ope~ati~lg

profits of the Banking lirle of business increased 15?6 in 1998
compared to 1997,

lnutstment Ma,tagtment .rld TrustLi,it of Busi//e$~

Tbe Bank’s Invescmc”r U,anagcment and Trust Division reported

a 200/0 in’rea.sc in segment profit fur 1998 compared to 1997 lcv-

ek. Tota3 In\,cscment Ma[;agemcnt and Trust fee income rose 200/o

i“ 1998. This >vas primxr.ly due to a“ 260/. incre%c in the m~ktc

VdUt of assets managed, from $1,666,472,000 at Dectmber 31,

1997, to $2,101,251,000 m of December 31, 1998.

Other expenses of the In,>estn,cnt Management and Trusr Ii[,e of
b“si”ess increased 21% i], 1998 o“er 1997 levels. The primary

reasons for this incrcasc icl expenses were required scafi”g

addttions during 1998 ar,d an increase in tbc Investrrlcnt

Management and Trust Division? incentive compensation,

associated with tbe acquisition of new busi”css and directly

related to the Division’s overall pro firabili~. The Trust incentive

compensation amounted to $386,ooO for 1998, con,pared co

$215,ooo for 1997. Exclusi>c of che cust of the Trust i!tce.ri,c
in each period, I“vcscmcnc Managcnle”t and Trust Lli,,isior>

expenses incrcascd 18°% in 1998, compared to 1997,

‘t%rrgzg< BurlkirtgLint of Busi/~~~r

The segment profit of the Bank’s fi,fortgage B#nking li{le of busi.

ncss increased 23% in 1998 con]p,lred to 1‘)97, During 1998,

mortgage interest rates decreased enough to nvake rcfitlxtlcing

attractive to borrowers. In 1998, the Morcgagc Ba”ktng lint of

business h~d a 77% in’rease in cbr volllmc of IOA”Ssold in the

secondary mortgage market, partially offset by a 12 basis p<,inr

decrease in the yield on sales, comp.rcd tu 1997 levels al)d

yields. The result was a 57% incrc:~e in loan fees ~nd rlct ~.titls

on sales, This is the reason for the 230/. increase i“ oper;>ting

pr”fit for the Llorrgage Banking Ii,le of b“sincss. & of

December 31, 1998, the Bank scr> iced $290,675.000 in resi-

dential mortgage loans for “thcrs, <:ompared to $234,061,000 i,>

loans serviced for others at year-et]i 1997, Following is a t~blc

showing the \,olumc of residential !norcgage loans origin~ ted and

sold in cht se’ondary mortgagt markcc, the coral lman fees a,,d

ncc gains redizcd, and cbc yield on these Ioa” s=I.s:

TMLE 2- Summary of Loan Safe Activity

(doiiarsin &onsa.&) 1998 I997

volume Qf10.ns s~Id ~. $134,676 $75,8?4
Lo.” fees and “et gains . . sales $ 1,187 $ 758
Yield onsaJes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .88% 1,0090

Byn MGu,r Bank Corporation

The Corporation is a one-bank holding compz”y, gcncr~ti”g

inccrcompany revenues from the retItal of Corp<, r:,riorl owned

propcrcies to the Bank. &penses arc prim~rily of an adnlitlistr~.

tive nature. In 1998, the Corporaci,~tl incurred expc[>scs direudy

relaccd co the start up or acquisicior, of net. subsidiaries, both in

1998 and planned for 1999. These additional coscs arc tbe pri-

ma~ reason for the Corporation’s k,ss of $291,000 for 1999

compared to $81,000 for 1997,

Tm Counxellorr of Bryn Mawr, I?*c.

In July 1997, the Corporation established x new ,vbolly-owned

subsidiary, TCBM, in order to add professional tu planning 10

its array of fin~ncid products and services offered to its cus-

tomers, TCBM employs CPAS (the “Tm Professionals”), lr~ving

signif>csnr tax planning and preparation b:,ckgruund :,nd fc,rmcr-

Iy employed by a “Big Five” accounting firm. h a part of tbe fur-

matio” of TCBM, a profit shari!lg agrecnlerlt was det,elopcd that

allows the T= Professionals to retain. the net reventles gener~tcd

by existing clients brought to TCBki. For the first full yc~r of

operation, TCBM exceeded the revenue gmals established in the

profit slriring agreement, adding $10,000 ro the Corporatic,n’s

net income for 1998, compared to a brek evrn for 1997,
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In January 1998, the Bank established a new wholly-owned sub-

sidia~, ICBM, to en~b[e the Bank to offer i[lsurallce related

products and service:, to its customer b=.. lCBlti offers a fuO

line of life, property ~nd casuahy and commercial lines co its

customer base. For iu first year of operation, ICBM had a loss

of $26,000.

In Sepcemhc.r 1998, the Corporation established a ne,v \vhollY-

owncd subsidiary, Bh{TC (Jersey), co enable the Corporation co

offer alcernati,e off-shore investing opportunicivs through the

Bank’s Invcst[ncnt Mmagcmcnt .Ild Trust Division. BMTC

Uersey) had a 1.ss of $8,000 for 1998,

Net Interest Income

A 5% or $1,141,000 increase in interest i“comc, combined with

a 140/. or $953,oOO dccrc=c in interest txpensc From yttr co

year resulted in xn ovcrafl i“creuc in net interest inco”lc of 11O/.

or $2,094,000. Average earning assets grew 40/o in 1°98, con,.

pared to 1997 levels. Higher yi,:lding average outsta!lding IOJII

balances grew by 6V.. The avcc>gt ourstandil>g balances of

investments and federal funds sold decreased by 50,6 and 8°.6,

respect ivcly. To td averlge deposi cs incrc~s~d 2?6. The largest

increase occurred in tbc Banks lower costing average outsta,>d-

ing NOW bdan’es, up by 1570. Non-inter=c bt~ril~g dcm~nd

deposits incre~ed by 9Y0, while averdgc savings dep.sits

increased by 3°/0, This growrh ill average [o\v cost md IIon-i!lcer.

esc bearing deposits was p~rcially offset by I 170/o dccre~w in

outstanding CD balances for 1998, compared TO 1997 levels,

This change in cbc mix of average deposit balances, away fronl

higher costing CDS into lower costing NOW and dcrntnd

deposits is primarily responsible for z 30 basis point de’rease i“

the average cost of funds for 19’28, compared to 1997. This

decrease in the cosc of finds was d[cectly rcsporlsib[c C>r the

Bank’s ncc interrst margin, dcfiried as net interest it?come exclu-

sive of loan fees as a percentage of average ~ar”ing z<scrs,

increming from 5.59% for 1997 co 5.997. for 1998.

The following table shows an znafysis of the =omF,osition of net interest income for ea’h of the l~t three yem, Interest i“conle on Ioms

includes fees on loans of $769,000, $742,ooo and $789,000 i“ 1998, 1997 a“d 1996 rtspc=tivcly, The average loan balances include nona’.

crud loans. ~ averagz bdan’es are calcdatcd on a daily basis, Yield on investment securities arc not dcdated on z ta.cquivdcnc btiis,

TABLE 3- Analysm Of Inte~t Rates and Intemt Differential

$ 19,W5 $ -
1,345 62

15,665 824

,61,760 1,880

4,953 224
..— —

~.6,713 2,104
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~1,088) —
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16>278 —

$359,860 $26,437
—

$ 82,773 $ —
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18 -
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The following table shows the effect of ch~nges in volumes and

rates on interest inconlc and incercsr expense. Variaslccs >vhich

~vere not specifically attributable to volume or race \vere dlocaced

proporrionacc[y between .cdLIme .md rsce. Interest income on

loans included increases decremes) in fees on loans of $27,000

in 1998, ($47,000] in 1?97, and ($9,000) in 1996,

T~LE 4- RateiVolume haf~e.s

The 5% gro>vth ill inccrest income for 1998 was attributable co a
4(s in’rcase in zverage carni”g assers from $315,548,000 for

1997 to $328,605,000 for 1998, The yield on average outstand-

ing earning assets rcnlained Ievcl for 1998, compared to 1997, at

8.0% for both periods. T},c tverage yield o“ loans aho remained

level in 1998, when compared to 1997, at 8,50/n. The average

yield on fcderd funds SIJICdecreased 20 b~is points, to 5.30A fo~

1998, compared c<>5.5?6 for 1997. The yield on the invesrmcnc

portfolio decreased by 20 basis points from 5.9°h if, 19?7 co

5.7% in 1998. This is due to the maturity of older, higher yield-

ing intestmenrs in the portfolio,

The growth in inccrcsr inc~mc attributable to volume was tbe

result of a 60A i!]cremc in Iver%e outstanding loans. l?artidly off-

setting this increase in the vo[umc variance was a reduction in

i“rcrcsr income related to :.hr race variance. h increase i“ cor”-

mission and fee income, directly related to i“crea.sed residenti:d

loan sale activity in 1998, dso contributed to a 5% increue in

tord interest inconlc in 1938 ovtr 1997 levels,

As of December 31, 1998, outstanding loans increased 5%. The

most significant loan growth amc in commercial and i“duscrid

loans, which grew by 18°h year-e”d to year-end. Permanent

mortgage Ioa”s, including both commercial mortgage Iozns and

residential mortgage loans increased by 8%. Commcrcid mort.

gage loans grew by 29%, while residential mortgage Imln balances

increased by 20/., Construction loan outstanding balances

decreased 3%, A 12% decrease in outstanding consumer loans is

due primarily to a 12% decrease in short-term indirect automo.

bile loan bdancm at year.er:d 1998 compared to yem-end 1997,

Increacd competition from automc, bile n>anu~acturcrs’ til>a,lci”g

facilities and i“ccntives w= the prin.lary re=oc, for this drcreasc,

Average deposits in’reased $5,441,000 or 2V0 during 1998.

During the first quarter of 1998, the remainder of the Prtnlicr

CDS, first issued during the first qu.xrter of 19?6 ar highly tom.

petiti>,e rates of interest, macurcd, The B~nk dtd n“t offer a prc.

miun, C.CCfor renewal of these CD:; which c“l, cribu red 10 a

17% decrease in average outsta”di”g CD balances i“ 1998,

compared to 1997 at,erage outstanding CD b~lances. P~rti~Oy a

reaction to banking consolidations in the BanKs n]zrkrt area a“d

tbe acquisition of ncu commercial :Lnd trust zccount~, chc

Bank’s average NOW accounts gre~, by 15?6, while {Ion-i[lccrest

bearing dcm~nd deposi[s and averaSe outstan(lng s~vi!,gs

deposits increased by 9% and 3%, respecci~,ely, The ch?rlge ill

the mix of average outstmding depc] sits, decre~itlg higher cost.

ing CD balances a“d incre:~sing lower and no cost b~la,,ccs w~s

primarily responsible for cbe 14% dccrezse in interest expense

for 1998. The COSt of funds for [1,. .Bar~k zver~ged 1,9% (or

1998 compared to 2.2% for 1997,

Loan Loss Provision

The Bank provided a 10.” loss provision of $150,000 for 1998,

compared to $200,000 for 1997. Tl,.t allo>vance fur pc>ssiblc

lea” losses was $4,100,000 ~“d $4,074,000 a of Decenlber 31,

1998 znd 1997, respecci}.ely Due co the IOTVlevel of delir]querl -

cies during 1998, amo””cing to 0.46°/0 of outsca,ldi”g lw~ns as

of December 31, 1998, and the level, of the loan loss reserve,

management deemed it appropriate :0 lower the provisi<>n for

loan losses du~ing 1998. The rati” of the loan loss reserve to

nonper forming loans was 8320j0 a“d 349?)0 as of Dccembcr 31,

1998 and 1997. respectively Nonpcrformi”g lo~ns amounted to

$493,000 #c Decemlber31, 1998, a j8°A de’reasc frur~,

$1,169,000 at December31, 1997. The al[oivance for possible

Ioa” Iossts, as a pcrcc”tage of oursral>di”g IOX”S,wu 1.46?1. as

of December 31, 1998, compared to 1.520/. z of Dccembcr 31,

1997. Bank managcmtnt decermi”ecl that the 1998 loan loss

pro~ttion >vm sufflcitnc to nvaincain <In qdequate level of dlc

.Ilotvancc for possible lea” losses during 1998,



$4,074 $4,182 $3,65;, $3,618 $3,601

(64) (196) (84‘ (527)
— — — . 12;1

— (41 (8) (69)
(1;) (237) (1801 (234) (36>)
(243) (433) (268) (769) [663)

100 10> 404 236 115
— — — — —

— 10
;>33:; 45

119 125 448 303 180
(124) (308) 180 (4CA) (483)
150 200 350 500 500

$4,100 $4,074 $4,182 %3,65L $3,618

(0.05)% (0,12)9. (0,07)<,> (0,211% (0,24)?0

The table below dlor.ces tht balance of the dlo~t,ance for possible loan losses by loan category and the corresponding pcr<er]t,~ge of
loans ro total loans fo! each loan category for the l=t five yezrx

T~LE 6- Allocation of Aflowance for Possible ha bsses

Dece,,) h,, 31,
1998 1997 1996 1995 I994

(.dlhm i. *bou..&)

Z~%+_~

Rala.cc at end of pc~iod iprlicahh ID

To,al ti]o 100.,)%

The loan loss reserve dlocacion reflects 2 reserve t,ased on specific loan loss reserve allocations on loarls rc,iewed individually as +VCO~
an average K,stocid lo~n \vrite-off pcrcenragc for lores in each specific loan mtegory not individually re,ie>ved and is dso incrrascd by
an additiond pcrcencage [O reflccr current market conditions, As a part of tbc intccnaf loan review process, loans considered imp~i red
under SFAS NO, 1I 4 ire individually re~,iewed ar~d, when deemed appropriate, a specific portion of the loan loss reserve is allocated to
the rcsptctive ilnpaired loans.

P.efer co page 12 for further discussion of the Corporation s loan review process,

OtfIec Income

The follon,i”g table det~ils other income for the yxars ended

December 31, 1998 and 1997, a”dthcpercent cha”gc from

ycarto yeax

1998 19;17 Y, ChInge

$9,272 $7.6!)8 209.

1,169 1,1.14 4

1,780 1,3:,8 29

818 51)9 61

224 379 (41)

1,457 651 120

$14,720 $11,749 25%

In addition to net interest income, the Bank’s three operating

segmcncs, as well as TCBM a“d I12BhI, gcnerare v.rious strear,ls

of fee-b~ed i“comc, i“cludi”g ln~,cscmcxlt Man~gcmc[lc and

Trust income, scrvicc. ch~rgcs on c!cposic accounts, loan servicing

income a“d gai”sllosscs on loan s:Jes.

k discussed i“ the “Lines of Busi,less” section on p,ges 3, 4

and 5, the incrczse in other irlcome i“ 1998 from 1997 levels

was primarily a result of an increase in f~cs foc 1nvc5tm~Jlt

Management and Trust services, as well as incrc~ed other fees

and service charges and gains on s:~e of loans, partizlly o~~cc by

lower gains 0“ d,. sale of 0~0.

Trust income grc>v 200/o from year to year, primarily due co the

acquisition of ncw Tr~<r acc”unts during 1998 and xn increase
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in the market value of”rrust a.sscs under mznager,ent, which

grew hy 26%, to $2,101,251,000 at year-end 1998, fip from

$1,666,472,000 ~ .f[)ccember 31, 1997,

As discussed irl the CChfc,rtgage Banking Line of Busine=” sec-

tion, the 610/b increase in gains on the safe of loans W= directly

attributable to an 77% .ncrcast in the volume ofk,ans sold in
1998 compared 101997, p~rtially offset by a“ 12 basis poi,lt

dccrc~s~ in the yield rcz!iz~d on the de of loans in 1998 tom.
pared to 1997. This residential loan sale activity is also prin~arily
responsible for a 29°/0 ir,crcase in othtr fees and service charges

in 1998, compared to 1,)97.

Gains on the sale of OREO decrczsed by41 %, This is a direct

result of the Bank dispo:,ing of the majoriV of its C)REO prior

to 1998,

Other opcrdting income increased 120% in 1998 from 1997

Icvcls, primarily due to r,tw sources of fcc income from TCBM

and lCBM, The ncc increase in revenues from chcse ncw ven-

tures amouflttd to $709.000 from 1997 to 1998. Exclusive of

these ncw revenue scrc.n>s, other operating income incremed by

17°h for 1998, comparct to 1997,

Other Expenses

The following table details ocher expe”scs for the years ended

December 31, 1998 and 1997, and the pcrce”c char,ge from

year [0 ycan

TABU 8- Other fipensm

1998 1997 Y. Char,gc

$10,289 $8,604 2090
2,375 1,655 44
1,908 1,791 7
1,392 1,365 2

1,817 1,565 16

1,283 1,069 20

569 584 (3)
354 322 111
811 822 (1)
213 I88 1:3
466 390 IY

7 9 (2”)
othe, opi’raring expcn>c, 3,211 2,473 30”

Total o<h,c,xPen,cs, , . . . . . . . . . . . . . $24,695 $20,837 19Y.

Other expenses itlcreased f.,r the year ended December 31,

1998, by 19% compared rJ 1997. Regular salaries, =o”siscing of

regular, part time a“d overcimc sda~ expense, and the largest

component of other expen<cs, rose 20%, due primarily to mcric

incrcaes and staffing addi: ions, including the cstahlishnltnt c,f

TCBki in July 1997 a“d ICBhi in January 1998. As <Jf

December 31, 1998, the C~rporation’s consolidated full-time

cqui~zlenc stafing le~selw=, 239.5 compared tO 220.0 ~ Of
Dcccmhcr 31, 1997,

Ocher salaries, which primarily consist of incc”tise compc,ls:a-

tion, increased 440/0 from 199? to 1998. The $720,000 i“crcase

was primarily related co incencit,c hwed conlpctlsatio”, tied to

the ovcrdl profitability of tbc Corpor:>cion and specific Ii”es of

business, The BarLk’s overxll i“ccn(:ive salaries i“cr~~sed

$388,000 or 27%. A Trust incentive rcl~ted co acquisiric>. of
ncw Trust business incre~ed by $171,000 or 800/o, as Trust new

business referrals grew during 1998, Other inccnti,e payments,

pri”larily co TCBM under the rcve”uc sharing agrermcl,c

bemveen BMBC and TCBM, increased $180,000, Conl!]lissions

paid to \nortgage originators decrc~sed $21,000 or 98?4 in

1998. The hfortg~gc Baf,king line of business relied more hex>,i.

IY on mortgage origil>arions through its o,vn employees or Fror”

refinances of existing mortgages, II<>Cspecifically requiring the

services ofa mortgage originator. These ch~nges accounted for

$718,000 of the $720,000 increase in other SJlarY expense from
1997 to 1998,

Employee benefit costs incre%cd $117,000 or 7% in 1998 over

1997 levels, Decreases of $242,000 in actuarially computrd

POsr-retirement benefits costs for 1998 compared cu 1997 and
$170,000 in the cost of the Corporation’s pension CXPCtI~ewere
offscr by incrcas.s in social sec”ri~ cues cxpc”se of $398,000,

the cost of medical and life insuran,:e incrcasi”g $ I I 1,000 and

the cost of the Corpora ciol>> Supple, mental Empl.yec

Retircmenc Pla increasing $66,000. An amendment [o the

Bank’s post-retirement benefit plan, utilizing alter jvativc

resources for providing medical he”,: fits co retirees, w~s ~Ile ,eA.
son for the reduction ill post- rccircnlcnt bcrlc fits cxpet>sc in

1998. Strong performance of the pc”sio” plan’s asecs w~ pri -

m~rily respo”siblc for the reduction in pcnsinn expet]sc fo~

1998, compared to 1997.

Occupancy expenses incre=ed $27,ooo or 2% from 1997 co

1998, During 1997, the Corporari”n prepaid a morrgzge loan

o“ O“C of its proper~ics, thcccby red(icing interest on mortg~gc

loaIIs by $60,000 from 1997 to 1998, There were I,o orbtr sig.

niticant changes in occupancy expense fronl 1997 t“ 1998.

Furnicurc, fixrures and cquipmc”t expense incrc.lscd by

$252.000 or 16% in 1998, compare<i to 1997. Depreciation
exprnse for the Bank accounted for the largest increase, up

$167,000, reflecting the effect of capital improvements made
during 1998. Exclusive of the increast. in depreciation cxpct>se,

the cost of furllicurt, fixtures and equipment expc”sc increased

100/. from 1997 to 1998.

Advertising incremcd $214,000 or 20CY0,reflectiflg both the estab-

Iishn]ent of flew tnarkecing initiatives :Lnd the continued commit-

mc”t to both print and elcccronic meclia as a means of i“’reasil]g

rhe public’s awarc”ess of the Bank’s array of producrs and scrt,iccs,

The cost of merchant credit card processing increased $76,ooo

or 190/0 s the volume of merchant processing increased, These

fees are more that offset by related revenues, included in other

operating in’omt
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stationery and suppli~ expense increased $32,000 or 10% in 1998,

compacd to 1997, due primarily co additiond cosw in 199s, _-

ciated with the production of new product brocbu,:m = wel [ = let.

terh=d for the t,av subsidiary companim, TCBM ;md ICBM.

Insurance expe”sc increased by $25,000 or 130/o, Insurance

expense is con~poscd <,f [he premiums paid to The Federd

Deposit Insur~nce Corpor~cion (the “FDIC”) fo [ deposit ins”r-

anct, ss u.ell as the co<r of the Corporation’s husi ness insurance

coverage. FDIC insur~”cr prcmi”ms remained [CVC1from 1997

to 1998, while the B~IIk’s business illsurance premiums

incre~sed $24,oOO during 1998, compared to sin]ilar premiums

i“ 1997, fipanded pc,licy limits and the additiot, of TCBM a,~d

lCB&f xrc responsible for this i“creasc.

Other op?rating expenses incre~cd $738,000 or 300A fro”, 1997

to 1998. Included in 1998k expense were expense:; related co the

acquisition of ,ICW s“b,idiaries, amounting to $161,000, v,hich

were not incurred during 1997. Other increases a:e as folk~ws.

Appr~isal fees, directly related co the increase in ITtorcgage bank-

ing activity, discussed [previously, increased $ 130,c,00 over 1997

levels. The cost of programming and related scrvic:s increased by

$79,000, as projects related to the Corporation’s Yczr 2000
(“Y2K) initiative were implemented, Travel and rnrcrcainlnent

cosrs grew hy $70,000, in a continued eff”rt to ac(Iuirc nexv busi-

ness relationships and ta support both tbe cummL.ni~ and exist-

ing business rcl~tio”ships. Telephone expense incrc~ed $64,ooo
over similar expenses fc,r 1997. During 1998, the Oa”k co,lverrcd

co a new tclcpbone system, incurring additiond expense in the

process, The cost ofhir:llg tcmporay help dso ro~,t by $45,000,

income Taes

The Corporacioni pro> ision for federd in=ome taxes is haed on

the statutory t~x rate 01’34%. Fcderd income cues for 1998

were $3,480,000, com[varcd co $2,950,000 for 19!)7. This rcpre-

senrs z“ effective tax rate of 33,7% and 32,596 foi 1998 arid

1997, rcspccrivcly. Income taxes for financial reporting purposes

differ from the amount computed by applying cht statutory rate

co income before rues, due primarily co tax-exenq:,t income

from ctrtain loans and ,nvcstmcnt securities. See P40te 8 to the

consolidated Gnal]cizl statements.

FINANCIAL CONDITION

investment Securities

The entire invcst~ntnt po[tfolio is classified as a,,ailable for sale,

Therefore, tbc invcscme~t portfolio w= carried at its estim,lced

market value of $50,97(1,000 and $40,666,000 ~ :>fDe’clnher

31, 1998 and 1997, respectively The amortized cosc of the porr-

folio zs of Decc,nbcr 31, 1998, uas $50,824,000, resulting i“

net unrealized gains of $152,000. The amorrizcd c:,st of the

portfolio at December 31, 1997, was $40,573,000, resuhi”g in

nec unrealized gains of $93,000.

The mzturity disttibuticn and ~~eighted ave,age yit:lds on a fully

ca~-equivalcnc bwis of invcscmetlt securicics ac December 31,

1998, are ~ follows

TABLE 9- Investment Portfolio

B,ok\,luc ,., .,,, ..,,. $,5,,, ” s,,,,,,), $ _ * — $,.,,), I
Wc!gh!cdJ,v,,s, yiel<{ f.,,h 5.Y’<, ,,,,,,,

s,,,. ,,,d ,.,,, itil ,UM,VL.,,,..
H,>.k,,!,,, ., !..,0, 2,,,+ $.,.,., _ .,,(,-+
\Yevghtcd.ver,ge y?.ld .,. ., .,, 7.2% (,,,% ,,.5,,. _ <,,,>%

“,hz, ‘.,.,,,,,.”, ,ccuri,,m
k,ok>”lw. .,..,,. ,.. .,, — — ,,!,,, ,,!!,,
\Vc;gh,cdaverage,,eld .- 6,,,,. .,, !,O

,“,,1 h..k ,,1,,,. ,,?,,”, $2, ,,,}, ,,,,., ,, ,.,,1, $*”,.-,
\!,.’Jl!d ,“.,,F ,,.1.! ,,”% ,.”,. 6,,% (,,1., 5 8!,,

In.Wltio”to$11,41 5,000 in mat(lriciw, during 1998,$15,002,000

in munici~ bonck were ded. Th~ increases in ~vtil~blc 6J11ds,

combined with an in~- in cotd deposits for 1998 of $13,551,000.

prompted Bank management to pur&& $36,683,000 in US,

Govermcnt or US. Go>,ernment Agency securitis. Those tra>s.c-

cions were primarily responsihk for the $10,310,000 or 25% incrac
i“ the i“,esunent ponfolio fron] D<xember 31, 1997, to Dtcernbr

31, 1998. At Dmmber 31, 1998, appr{]ximately 880A of the inv~t-

mcnt pomfoii. col,sisccd of fud rdt e U.S. Govemme,,t u,d U, S.

Gwernment Agen~ securities. The Corporarior> dms r]ot o,vrl any

deri>ztive invesrmenm ~ld do= not plan co purchwc my of tbow

investments in the fo~~bk future.

bans

For tinancizl reporting purposes, both fixed and floatirtg ra[e

home equi~ loans, collateralized lhy mortgages, arc in’ludcd i“

other permanent m“rtgage loans. Floxting rate per,ona]

CredicLinc loans are incl”dcd in co,,sumtr loans,

A breakdown of the loan port foli<, by mzjor categories at

December 31 for ach of the Iat five years is as follows:

TABLF. 10- ban Portfolio

D&,.,,&, 3t

(;. the”....i.) t 9,8 , c,,, ,,,,,<, ,,,.,5 , z,,,

,,,, ,,,.,,, 1,,,.,,
,,mm,.,., mo,,qgt l“.. $ $,,0,53; !,,)2,.,74 $ ,,,s”s $ ,$,:,! s ,),,,.$

l“””, ..,,...,..,,. 13,204 ,3,,,47 ,84
.,, ”,.,,,,41 .,d ,,d..,,;z, ,.,,,,. 8,,3,8 .,.,-f ..,,,” <,-,,. - ,,,, (>,,
c.)n$”mcr 1.,., 6s,078 ;,,, ,,(>.1 ,, ,5, 2 -,!,,,,!, 7.,,2,

r.,d . . S281.185 $268,55S S259,.2: S?.s5,35> $218,:38

The maturity distribution of the k>a,l portfolio], excludirlg Ioa”s

secured hy one-family residential ptoperty ;lnd consumrr loans,

at December 31, 1998, is sho\vtl bclow.

M.,,,,).~ M.,”ring
d“,i~ from1000 M#,u;”g

(* (h”’..&) _ *9,9 &co+ *O,J tit., 1,,> T.!.l
,:.. ”,,,.’.1, i,n,n,ral,and“gr,..,,urd. $,,,<,?, $,.,,(,,,3 $I(..(1,)(,$ ,Cl,,r!.
R., ! <,,,,-”,.s,,.., !,!., 8.,,, 4,, ,. ,), ,,,,J,,+
Rc~csr>,<_tl,,,.. ,, . . . . . . . . . . . . . . _ ,,.,,, ,>,?,” ?<,.,uA ,o,,i,,

T“ral, . . . ,.. .,, ,, ..,,,.,,,..,,,, S,,:>,,? $u,,5,w s,),:,, !,,:, -,8

[,,tcrerxnvir;, tq ,Istthe ah<>,.[m,ns:
L,,., w;,h ,,m.<le,ec,,,i,,,d,.,,, ,,,,, ”,, J,8,”15 $( ,,?,, $ ,,,,,2,.
1,>>,,sw;rh>diuvc,l.lror kluJ6.g<ace,.., ,, >5,4?? .,775 3,1,>cI<8!(I,,:uJ
T,xt,l, . . . . . . . . . . . $,,>,.,,7 s>6.5,, $5%,?21 %15>,->8

T&”,. . “d ,,.Acd.kdJ.p,,,,,<”s,. 1A,i.- ;,,,/”41 . ,A<..,,,7;9 ,/,,r;J,’,,#,,,
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TABLE 11. LOan Portfolio and Non-Performing Asset Analysis

$ 15,786 $122 $— $ 15,<1[18 $— $ 5(1 $50 $–
49,772 31 553 50,156
44,329

353 Z21 574
58 84

—
44,.(7I 84 84 —

109,887 211 437 11(1,535 437 ~;, 708 11>1

10,774 — — 10,774 — — —
2,430

—
— — 2,430 — — —

13,204
—

— — 13,204 — — — 81
123,09, 211 43? 12.3,739 4.)7 271 7,)8 ~~j

8’>,098 270 — 89,368 — — —

89.098 270 — 89,368

—
— — — 427

8,296 36 10 8,342 10 — 111
\7,a I 260 46 57.94?

—

46 — 4[3
1,771

—
18 — 1,789 — — —

67,708 314

—

56 68,078 56 — 5(, :0,
— — — . — — 3,1.30

$279,897 $795 $4’)5 $281,185 $493 $271 $?64 $4,,,)(,

The Bank’s lending funcc o“ is its principal income gt”cracing

acliviV, and it is the BaiI1.’s policy co concinuc co serve the credit

needs of its market area, Total loans at December 31, 1998

increased 5°A to $281,185,000 from $268,558,000 :[s of

December 31, 1997.

The Bank’s con~n]crcid ald industrial lel,ding had the largest

grO~v~h ill Oucsranding !Oan h~al,c~s frOm year tO year.
Commercial a“d industrial Ioa” balancm grew $13,894,000 or

18°A from $75,474,000 a! December 31, 1997 to $89,s(j8,000

at Dcccmber 31, 1998, Increased Lusines de\,elopmcnc in the
BanFs commcccial lendin~ ma,ker area, the addition of new,

experienced commercial lenders and the emergence of ne>r, com-

mercial lending rclationsh, ps, partially tbe result of recent b~nk-

ing mergers in the Banks inarket area, are the reasons far this

strong growth,

Permanent morcgagt loans, which consist of commercial and

residential mortgages m well as home equity loans, increased by

896 or $8,061,000 during 1998, from $102,474,000 at

December 31, 1997, to $110,535,000 at December 31, 1998,

This growth W= d“e prim, irily co z“ $11,182,000 or 29%

increase ill commercial mortgage loans, Home equity loans

decreased by $3,408,000 or 7%, and residential mortgage Ioar,s

increased by $287,000 or 20/o,

Consumer loans, consisting of loans to individual for house-

hold, automobile, family, and other consumer needs, :,s well as

purcb~sed indirect a“tomo!]ilc pzp~r from ~utomobilc dcaftrs in

the Bank’s market ties, de’r~sed $8,885,000 or 120A, from

$76,963,000 at December 31, 1997, to $68,078,000 ;I[

December 31, 1998, The largest decrease occurred in the out-

standing balances of tht indirect auto”lobile y~pcr, Outst~”ding

indirect automobile p~per balances decreased $8,037,000 or

12% from $65,069,000 at Dcccmber 31, 1997, c“ $57,032,000

at Decembcc 31, 1998, Compcticior> from automobile nlanu~,ac.

curers’ ‘redit Facilities and lower costing financing froln home

equity loans arc the primary rczsul,s for this decrease,

1“ re’e,,c years, chc Bank had made ;, decision co rcdu’e its coK,-

struction loan bdan=es, co Io>ver its ,:xposure to higher risk

loans, Ai of December31, 1996, 19’97 and 1998, the corlstruc-

ciun lending portfolio had “o IIo”pcrforn>i”g loans ,Ior :,ny

loans ddinquc”t 30 days or more, The B#nk hw cI]os<,l cu

selectively return co the construction lending marker, h of

December 31, 1998, the construccio,> loan portfolio decre,{sed

by $443,ooo or 3%, from $13,647,ooo at De’c,nber 31, 1997,

to $13,204,000 at December 31, 19!)8.

Deposim

The Bank attracts deposits from widlin its prinlary mackct are~

by offering >ztious deposit i“strumc” ts, in’luding savings

acco”nti, NOW ac=ounts, market rate sccouncs, ~nd certificates

of deposit,

Totaf deposits increased 49” to $342,357,000 ~t December 3 i,

1998, Froln $328,806,000 at year enc\ 1997, A more meaningful

memure of deposit change is average (daily bdanccs, & iOustr~t-

ed in Table 12, average daily deposit lYalaI1cesif]creased 296,

During 1997, tbc Bank renewed its Premier CD progr.lm fuc ;%[I

addltio,r~l year, nlaturing during the first qcrartcr of I ‘)98, k a

part of its liq”idi~ plan for 1998, the Bmk chose not to otfer i

premiu”~ rxtc of intcresc for the renev:sl of the Premier CDS.

10



Average CD bal.nccs dccrc~cd by 17% from 1997 to 1998.

Offsettil~g this dccre~e were 150/. and 9% increases in the

respective avcragt octscznding b>[anccs of low ,:osti”g NO\V

accounts and non-in teresc bearing demand dep:,sit accounts. It
is believed thar bank consolidation wichitl the ElamKs rn~rket

area, as well ~ the acquisition of new deposit a,:cou”ts tbrougb

the growth of new Icndi”g a“d Invcscmenc MaI]agcmc”~ a“d

Trwr relationships, arc primarily responsible for [his growth in

low costing deposits. As previously discussed, *is change in the

mix of deposits, awa) from h!gber costing CDS, into Iox,er cosc-

ing NOW accounts and demand deposit accour,ts is primarily

responsible fur a 30 b~sis point decrease in the BanVs overall

cost of funds and a 40 basis point increase in rh(: Bank’s net

interest margin for 1?98, compared ro 1997.

TMM 12- Average Daily Bafances of Deposib
?. change % Change

19’18,s. 1997.5.
(do&m in ,htid,,ds) 1998 1997 1997 1996 1996
Dcma,J dcpnsit>, !\,\n-

i.terc,c.hcgri,ig ,.,,,.,.,,., $82,773 $76,076 8.8 $73,034 4.1
Mirk., ,,,. ,<<<,,,,,,s,.,..,. 44,325 45,303 (3.4) 49,451 (7.2)
NOVJ1..0.”,s 85,317 7.3,958 15,4 70,549 4,s
R,wII, ,avi,tg,,,,,,.,.,,.,.,., 40,143 58,*)L 3,2 41,577 (6.5)

169,785 158,752 6,9 161,577 (1,71

Time deposits,,,.,.,.,,.,.,.,., 61,503 73,792 116,7) 60,!)30 21.1

Toad.,.,,.,.,.,.,,.,,,,,,,,,,.,. $.314,061 $308,620 1,8 $>95,541 4,4

The following cable sho~vs the maturity of certifi~~tes of deposit

of $100,000 or greater as of December 31, 1998:

T~~ 13- Maturity of Certificates of Deposits of

$100,000 or Greater
(2. Ibown&)
Three ,,><>.,1,s“, less.,.,.,,.,, $1 2,6(14
rh,r< csx,tx “>om!h, ,,.,.,.,,., 2,207
six t. w.),. ,“O”ths,,,,.,.,., I,305
c,..,., d,.,, Wcl.. m“. d, ~

To,>l.,,,,,,.,.,,.,..,,.,,,..,,,,,..$1,.524

Capid Adequacy

At December 31, 1998, toed shareholders’ equity <,f the

Corporation tv= $42,221,000, a $2,872,000 or 7%, increase

o>,er $39,349,000 at December 31, 1997. In additi,]n to edrn.

ings and dlvidcnds for d,e year, the impact of SFAS No. 115

resulted in an increase in shareholders’ cq”ity in 1998. As of
Dccemher 31, 1998, shareholder< equity in=luded ~~nredized

gains on invcscnlenc securities, net of deferred taxes, of

$100,000 compared ro unrcdc=d gains on investment sccuritics,
net of taxes, of $62,000 at December 31, 1997. Th:.s change

accounced for a $38,000 increase in total shxebold(:rs’ equity

from December 31, 1997, tODecember 31, 1998,

The Corporation and che Bank are required co meel cercin rcg-

u[atory ‘apical adequacy guidelines. Under these gui{ieli”es, risk-

based capital ratios measure capital as a percent~e of risk-

adjusted assets. Risk-adjusted assets are deter~lzi”ed by assi~[]ing

various >vcights to all asseu and off-balance sheet :Irr.tt,gen,er,ts,

such as letters of credit a“d loan com”lit”~c”cs, b~sed o“ the

associated risk.

The Bank’s risk-based capital ratios at December 31, 1998 and

1997. are listed below. These ratios are all in ex=css of rbc “lit,i-

,IIUITIrequired capital ratios, also listed below,

TABLE 14- Risk-Based Capital Ratios

Tbe FDIC ha created a srdtutory fr~mework for c~pical require-

ments that established five catcgr~rics of capit:d strength, ral,gi~lg

from a high of “well-capitalized to a low of “criric~lly {,”der

capitalized, & of December 31, 1998 and 1997, rbe Bank

exceeded the levels required to meet dlc definition of a “wcO-

capitalimd” bank, Managrme,?r anticipates that the Corp<,r;tti c>”

and the Bank tvi[l continue to b. in compliance with all capic~l

requirements and co”tinuc to be cizssified u “well-capitalized,”

The Corporation’s abifity co declare di,,ide”ds in d,c f“tur. is

dcpcndcnt on future emnings.

Risk Elements

Bisk elements, as defil,ed by the Sccucities and Exch~tlgc

Commission in its Industry Guid,: 3, are composed of fuur spe.

citic categories (1) r]onaccrwd, past due, and restructured lw~ns,

(2) potencid problem [oans, !oa”s nor incl”dcd i!, the first cat..

gow, but wbcre in forrnaciot> known by Bank “Yan.gc”Icnt i!,di.
caccs th~t the borrower may not b,: zble to comply kvith prrsetxt

paymtnc terms, (3) foreign Ioarls uutstan~lng, and (4) loan con-

centrations. Table 1 I presents a summa~, by 10An type, of dte

BanVs nonaccr”al and past due lo:lns as of Dcccmbcr 31, 1998,

It is the Bank’s policy to promptly place t~otlpcrk, rming Ioa”s or]

nonaccrual stac”s, Bank management krlows of no outsta,lditlg

loans thzt presently >vould meet chc criteria for inclusion i“ tkc

potential problcm loan category, as indicated under specific mrc.

gory (2) referred to above. The Bar\k bas [10 foreign Ioal)s, 2nd

loan concentrations arc presented in T~ble 6, Table 6 prescn~s

the percentage of outstanding loans, by loan type, compared to

toral loans outstanding as of Decenlber 31, 1998,

Asset Quality

The Bank is =ommitted to maint~ining ~nd developing quali~

assets. Loa growth is generated prinl.wily within the Bin k’s “,ar-

ket area, which includes Mo”tgomrry, Delzware. ~“d Chest.c

Counciu, a.swell as portions of Bucks md Philadelphia Councics,

The development of qutity loan growth is controlld through a
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uniform lending poli~ th~t definm the lending functions ~ld

gods, loan apptovd pra:ess, lending limits, tnd loan review,

Nonperforming ssets amounted to $764,000 at December 31,

1998, a 360/6 dccreasc from $1,194,000 at Dccemher 31, 1997.

Nonperforming loans v:erc $493,000 at Decembel 31, 1998, a

58°A decrcme fron~ $1, ~69,ooO ,t December 31, 1997. OREO

incrmsed $246,000 co S27 1,000 at December 31, 1998, from

$25,000 ar December31, 1997. Both .Inounts consist of

OREO ‘ollatcrdlzi”g single loans. The proper~ rcp”rted as of

December 31, 1997 was disposed of during 1998 snd nm

propertifi, coOarera[izin3 a single 10An were added to the Bmk’s
OREO a“ount during che fourth qusrccr of 1998.

Toed I>onPerfornling as~cts, which include no”-accruing and

past due loans and othe] red estate owned, are presrllted in the

table below for each of the five years in the period <!nded

Dc’ember31, 1998.

TABLE 15- Nonperforming Assets

Wd.$(,!, —m.r!gig, ., ...,, $84 $ 71 $ .8 ! — $ 48

,.<,”,””,,, ,, ..,,,,.,,,,.,,, ,6 27 ,, 15, ,2

omrnendations by CIICregulators which would havr a marcrial

effect on the Corporation’s liquidity, clpit~l resources, “r rcsulc~ of

operations.

Asset and Liability Management

Through its Asset/Liabili~ Commi{:tee ~ALCO”) and the appli.

cation of Risk M.nagc,nenc Policies a“d Procedures. the Bank

seeks co tninimix its exposure to interest rate risk u ,vell zs to

maintain suficicnt liquidity and capital compliance.

Interest Rate sensitivity

The differe,,cc betwten interest se,,sitive .sstcs a“d i“tercsc scilsi.

tivc deposits, stzced in doOars, is referred to as the inttrcst rate

sensiriti~ gap. A p“sitiye gap is created when intrresr race sensi-

ti>,e assccs exceed i“ tercst IJ tc se”sit i,,,e deposits. A p“sitit,e intertst

race sensici,e gap >vill result in a greater porrion of assets cunl-

pared to deposits repricing with char]gcs in interest catcs witbi!~

specified time periods. The opposite effect results frunl a t,cga[i,,e

gap, In practice, however, thtrc may bt a lag in repricing son]e

products in comparison to others. A positi>,e gap in the shorc-

rcrm, 30 days or less, in a risiflg intercsc rate e,lvironntcnt should

produce an increase in ncc interest i“cotne, The converse is cru. of

a negative gap in a rising interest rate cnt,iranmetlt,

As shown in the following table, the Bank is presently asset incer-

esr rate sensitive in the short-term, 3(] dzys or less CaCCgOrY.
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TABLE 16- Interet Rate Semitivi~ AnaIysi$

as of Dectmber 31, 1998
Rprici.~ Periods

0 to 30 31 to 90 91 to 18o 181 m .365 (J,,, Non.Rate

Days Days Days Days 1Yeal Sensitive Tod

Inceresr-betri~g depoits with othc~ bank $ 5,105 $ — $46$—$—$ — $ 5,151
Federal f.nds sold . .,, . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 20,372 — . — 20,372
l.vcscment s<curicics .,..,.,....,..

— —

17,766 2,004 4,286 3>145 23,’759 50.960
Loans . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

—

82,672 11,609 19,209 28,296 139,399 (4,1001 277,o85
Casband due from b~nks . . . . . . . . . . . . — — — — — 19,807 19,807
Ochcrassecs . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — 14,262 14,262

Total a.iscrs . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ~125,915 $13,613 $23,5& $31,441 $163,1~ $29,969 $387,637

Liabilities and shareholJc~s’ equi~

Demand, n.ni”rercsc.bezi.g

S.vingsdeposi[s

Timedcposits ., . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Other liahilicics . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Shareholders’ equity ., .,

Total li~biliries and <hareholdcr/ tquiq

Gap . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Cumulative gap

Cumulative earning mscts s a catio

of intercsr bearit, g liabilities

...
,.. .

.

. .

~; — $–$–$–$ — $89,872 $89,872
71,135 — — — 118,560 189,695
14,781 10,605 16,025 13,044 9,270 63,725

— — — 6.152 6.152
—

~, 85,916 — —$10>605

38,193

$16>025 $13,0; $127,8; $13;;

$39,999 $ 3,008 $7,516

$387,637

$18,397 $35,328 ($104,248) —

$’39.999 $43>007 $50,523 $68,92o $104,248 — —

14796 145% 145Y” 155% 141Y. — —

Tbe Bank uses income simulation models to mc%urc its interest

rate risk and to manqe its interest race sensitivity. The simula-

tion models consider tnoc otdy the impact of changes i“ intecesc

rates on forcmttd net interest income, but also such factors as

yield CUIVCrelationships, possible loan prepaymrnrs, and deposit

withdrawals. h of ye~r-end 1998, based on an analysis of the

results from the simul~cion models, the Bank’s ir, cccesr race risk

W= within the accepr~ble range as established by [be Bank’s Risk

Management Policies ~nd Proctdurcs.

While future inccrest rate movements and their effect on Bank

revenue cannot be predicted, there are no trends. events, or

uncertainties of w,hlch the Corporation’s manage tncnt is current-

ly aware [bat will have, or are reasonably likely c,, have, a m~reri-
al cffcc~ on the Corporation’s liquidity, capital ct::ources, or

results of operations ill the future,

Liquidity

The Bank’s liquidi~ is rnain[ai”ed by managing N core

deposits, purchasing fiderd funds, selling loans ir, the sccondzry

market, and borrowing from the Federd Home Lea” Bank of

Pittsburgh (the “FHLB’>).

The Bank’s liquid assets include c~h and cash eq~tivdcnts as

w,eil as certain unpledged investment securities, B:Ink manage-

ment hm developed a revised liquidity mezsure, i,,corporati”g its

ability to borrow from tbc FHLB to meet liquidity needs ~nd

goals. Periodically, AL(;O reviews the Bank’s Iiqu, dity needs,

incorporating the ~bility to borro~, from the FHLB and rcporcs

rhcse findings to the Rtsk Management Comnlitt:c of the

Bank’s Board of Direct,]rs.

During 1998, cash provided by opcracions amounted co

$10,001,000 and was pcimzri(y fro”, net il,con,c of’ $6,857,000

for 1998. Cash used for i“vesring accivicics amounted to

$27,277,000. Investment activity used $10,266,000 in c~sk, as

the balance in the investme”r pc>rtfulio increased by 25% at

December 31, 1998, compared co Deccmbcr 31, 1997, Loan

.ctiviT, including the purclv~sc (If $26,206,000 in i“~trecr a“cu-

mobile paper, used $15,252,000 in funds dorirlg 1998. Tbc sale

and acquisition of OREO propcrtirs ill 1998 used a net anlou”t

of $z2,000 in msh, while the pu rcbase of capital additions used

$1,737,000.

Offsetting the dc’reasc in funds from investing zcti,,itirs ,VJS xn

increase i“ funds from the Corp,]ration’s fiwarlcing actit>icies,

which provided $9,426,000 in net cash, prinlarily the result of a

$13,551,000 net increase in oumtanding noninterest-b~aring

demand and savings related depc,sits. The Corporation used

$26,000 in rep.ymenc of its morcgagc debt. The Corporatioll

d,o used $2,519,000 to repurch,tsc treasury stock. The

Corporation’s cab and cash tquivalerlrs decreased fronl

December 31, 1997, to Decembt?r 31, 1998, by $7,850,000,

fro., $53,182,000 at December 31, 1997 to $45,332,000 :It

December 31, 1998.
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Other

Y= 2000

The @&r 2000 l+ohh,,n

The Y2K problem is the result ofpotenti~l difi(;uhy wi(h soft.

ware and con]puter s,,stcms or any equipment with comp”rcr

chips (co[lecti~.ely cht “Systems”) chat score the year portion of

the date as just WO digits, rather thm four digitij (c,g. 98 for

1998). Syscenls using the mvo d,git approach will not be able to

determine whether ‘(~0” represents the year 2000 or 1900. The

problem, if n<,t corre<tcd, n~ay make those systcrns fail altoget-

heror, even worst. allo,v chrm co generate incorrecc calculations

causing a disruption c f chc upcracions of The computer ar,d
rela red SY,t.111$

Readi?res~Effort~

Tbe Corporation bcga~l its procezs of assuring that all its

Systems and applications arc Y2K compliant in November 1996

In 1997, z comprchen:ii>e proje=t plan (the ‘Plan”) to address

the Y2K problem and ,ssues, relating to tbe Bank:; and its Affili-

ated operations, was developed, approved by the Bored of

Directors and implemented, The Bank, as the primary operating

subsidiary of the Corp{, rarion is addressing the Y2K problcm

and related issues for th,e Corporation and all of irs subsidiaries,

The scope of the Plan i~cludes five phm.s. They aPe m fol[aws

Awareness, Assessmrtlt, Renovatio]l, Validation and

Implemenutio”, z defi~,ed by the Federal Financi:d I“scitutions

Examination Council a,]d cbe banking regulatory agencies

which regdate the Corporation tnd its affdiates.

A project team, consistir,g of key members of the B:mk’s tech”ol-

OW “aff, rePr~srn tatives Of~nctional business units and senior
marlagemcnt (the “Team”) was created. Additionally, the duties

of the Senior ViCe Prcsidsn r a“d Chief Technology (lff~m r x,ert

realigned to scwe primarily as the Y2K project manager,

The asstssme”[ of tbc in,p~t of the Y2K issues on kc Bank’s

computer systems has be<n completed. The scope 06 the project

also includes ocher operario”al and cnviconmcncd sysrcms, since

they may be imp~c ted if embedded computer chips control the

functionality of those Systems, Baed on the ~essment, the

Bank h= identified and prioritized chose Systems deemed to be

mission critical or those that have a signif!canc impac:t on nor-

mal opcrationz.

Tbc Bank relies o,? third pzcry >,endors and ser”ice providers

(the “Groups”) for its data processing capabilities a“d co mairl-

cain its computer systems, Formal commtinications with chose

Groups and other extcr”d cou”tcrparcics were initiated in 1997,

continued through 1998 Ind into 1999, to assess chc Y’2K read, -

ness of their products and services. Their progress in tneeting

their targeted scbed”les to attzin Y2K ~eadinem is bei]lg moni-

tored for any indication th~t they may nor be ahk to address
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their Y2K problems in a timely fashion. Thus far, respc,!~ws i“~i.

catc chat most of the significant pruvidccs i,> the Group cucrc~,t.

Iy ha”. compliant versions available or a[c well into the rel>ova-

rion and testing phases with complctiojl scheduled for rIOK later

than March 31, 1999, However, the Bank can give 110guarantee

dr~t tbc systems of tbe Group c,” which tbc Bar]Ks Sysccms rely

will be timely renovated al~d be Y2K compliant, The Tea,?, ,vill

=ontinue CQmo”ilor the progre~~s o f tbe Group itl rhcir ctyurts to

become Y2K conxplianr,

Addiciondl~ the Bank ha desig,~ed and completed in]plemetltl.

tion of a plan to identifi the potetltid risb posed by the inlp~ct

of Y2K issues o“ its siglifica”t deposit cusco”,ers. The Bank hw

also designed and substantially irclplen~en[ed a pl:tn CC,idc”ci+
the poterltial risk posed by the ill~pact of Y2K issues o“ its signif-

icant borrowing customers. Fern].d comn]unications have heel]

initiated and initial findings were reported to the B“:,rd of

Directors during the fourd~ quarter of 1998. Ac each qu.lrrcrly

Bank Board of Directors meeting, the B{]ard is prcserl ted with ~tl

up&te of tbe status of the Y2K irtitixtive. On rbose muflths rh~r

the Board of Directors does nat nlcet, a!> update of the Y2K ini-

tiati,,e is presented to the Boards Risk i?la”agement C.onlnlitrce.

[n the fourth quarter of 1998, rbt, B#nk for”,cd a Y2K

Communications Committee, ‘ontisting of Bank n]arkcti”g

off{cers and members of the Y2K Team. T}lis Comnli tree is

developing and implementing plans to educate and in furrn its

tmployces, cwtomcrs and community about the Y2K r.~diness

of the B#nk, w wel[ as the Y2K issues facing the fln~llcial ser-

vices ind”scry and cbc public at l~sgt.

The Bank employed an outside consultant to review its Y2K

proje=t, The report is bcirlg revie>ved and the findings :Irc bti”g

considered by rn~”agement.

Ctirrent $talzfs

The Team estimates chat tbe B#nk’s Y2K readitless project is

92°h complete and that the acciviti<:s involved in assessing exter-

nal rid-s and operational issues are 90?4 colnplete c,vcrall.

The following table providm a sumnlary of the currcr,c status of

the five phases invobed and a projected timetable for mnlpletiotl.

ProjcccPhac Y. Completed [>~mjc,:ted COmPlCti.n C“”,,tlen’,
Aware,,,,, 100’!! ti>n>plc!.~
,%,es$mcnc 100% C“mplr,ed
k..v%<.n 100% Refer to Note (I)
!Jalidarion so% March 31, I!I!L) 0,, S<hed.1,
Impl.mcc,ci( ion 80.~ 1.”.30, 199~1 c>” Sd,cd.l,
Overall C.mplction 92%

Note (1) Wj),ifethe Battki misjiotz cvitica[ Sjjtents are 100% <ottt-
pttted i?z tbe R~?>ouatiorzphat, the B,zFtkhzz~deter}izi,’ed

that ia t~]irdparp t,e?ldorsarid Jert,iceprouiders ~re s*tb-

jte?~tially<ompl=teirz the Ren~uationph<zse.[t is anticipat-
ed that thf wzisrioncridcaI Group nlettiberstt,i[[hzzupcom-

pleted the Renouatio,zphase h;vMarch 31, 1999.



The Bank has cbus fa: primarily used z“d cxpec :s co continue to

usc internal resour’es co implement its readiness plan and to

upgrade Or IePlace the systems affected by the ~:2K issue. The
total cost co the Bank of these Y2K compliance ~ccivitics hm “or

been and is not anticipated to be material to its l~nancial posi-

tion or results of operations in any given year. The Bank x“cici -

pates funding the costs of bc=oming Y2K compliant out of its

earnings streams, Purchmed hardware and softw~re is being

capitalized and dcprc<iated i“ accordance with Ea”k policy.

Ocher costs rented to the project ,vill be expens{:d as incurred.

The Bank does “ot anticipate having to reduce c]r c[imi”ztc any

of its existing hardware / software budgeted Syst~ms spendil,g

because of the projected i“crcase in Y2K Systems spendir,g,

There are no significant liabilities that have arisen because of the

Y2K process, To man.lgeme”t’s kno}vlcdge, all Y2K related lia-

bilities have bee” rcc~rded o“ chc Bank’s books in an appropri-

ate and cimcly manner.

The Bank is evd”ating the adequaw of its loan ~ass reserve, as it

relates to potenti~l risk posed by the lack of Y2K readiness of its

significant horrun,ing customers. Bank managex,e”c currcncly

believes that the loan loss reserve is sufficient to cover the potcn.

tial needs of both Y2K z“d non-Y2K Ioa” loss z{:ti~i~. Bank

managcme”t is monitoring the Ioz” loss resen,e, as it relates co

Y2K matters on an or,going bmis.

A detailed analysis of costs incurred from both 1!197 a“d 1998

in conjun’cio” with Y2K is being maintained in tbe Bank’s

information se~vices area, Breed on a review of tl,is analysis and

a discussion with the .Ippropriare Bank officers, it was deter-

mined that the following are the most significant Y2K cumula-

tive expend ic”rcs co d.arc, zlo”g with z projecrior, of poccr~tiaJ

expend[turcs, “e’es%ry to complctc the Y2K cor,lpliancc

req”ircmencs,

New Hardware / So fnvarc replacemtnr $270,000
AS/400 for Y2Ktestifig, .,, ,,, .,,,... 33)000
Modificacio”s to exist,ng systems ., ., 29,000

Ocher Y2Kcostscod~te . . . . . . . 103,000
Total expended todate, .,, .,, .,......, 435,000
Anticipated additional costs (1) 130,000
Total projtcred Y2Kmscs $565,000

(I) Primarih ~~~o[iatedwith contingent and comn~unication~

rekted qemes and an additional itaffperson rv a~stitit, the
Y2Kpr0ject.

The costs and the timetable in which the Bank plans to tom.

plere the Y2K readiness activities are based on m,~nagcmt”t’s

best estimates, which ,vere detived using numerous assumptions

of future events in’luding the concinued availabi .i~ of cercai”

resources, third party rcad!”ess plans and other fis’tors, The

Bank can make no guarantee th~t these estimates will be

achieved, and actual results could differ fro[l) such pl~ns,

Risk Arserxment

Based upon current information related to the Group, n>anage-

ment b= determined that the Y2K issurs ivill not p{,se sigllifi-

canc operational problems for its Sysrcms, This determil,atior, is

b=cd on the ability of chose Gr<)up members to rccluvate, in a

timely manner, the products and servi.cs on which tb. B~nk’s

Systems rely However, the Bank can give no guarancec rh~t tbe

systems of the Group members ,-,ill be tinlely renovated :Ind

become Y2K compliant.

The porc”tia[ reaso”ablc worst c~e scc”srio, relating to Y2K

compliance, would bc if cichcr the Bank’s or cbe stpar.~te

Investment Managemellr and Trust Divisio!is mission cricic~l

vendors supporting both data processing Sysccnls >vere to f~il

due to a Y2K problem.

Bank management believes, based o“ information and testi~lg

results obtained fron~ both mission critical vendors, that both

are and it is anticip~ ted will renvain Y2K compli~nt. Thr B:lnk

will continue co monitor the Y2 K compliance of these IN,” n>is-

sion critical vendors.

Co>ztingexq P[ar*— Y2K

Realizing that some disruption may uccur despite its best cfforr~,

becallse of the Y2K issue, the Bank is in the process of upd:{tiflg

contingency plans for each critical system, i“ [be event o“e of

those syxtems fails. The Bank’s mlission criricxl vendors have

developed contingency plans to provide rcsourccs during the

weekend of December 31, 1999 and for z period of tijne aftcr-

wsrd to help their clie”rs ovcrco,~le any unforesecr, pr<,blcrns,

associated with the millennium cb~nge. Tht Batik’s nlission crit-

ical vendors a“ticipace the ability 10 resolve any p<]rcncial Y2K

related problem in a timely manner, “rhe status of the concin.

gency planning process >vas prcs’fnced to the Exec”civc

Committee of the Bank’s Board of Directors in Dcccmbcr 1998

and the contingency plan will be s(lbsrancially con]plcred by

March 31, 1999.
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1997 vs. 1996 RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Net Income

Nec inconle for the year ended December 31, 1997, was

$6,130,000, a 10A inc rcase over net income of $6,042,000 for

the yezr ended Dccen]ber 31, 1996. During the firsr quarter of
1996, che Bank sold z commercial property it had acquired i“

connection \vith its w..>rkour of a de faulccd loal,. Tbc Bl”k rec.

Ognimd a nOn-recurrillg gain On the s~e Of $1 .073ioo0 ,~hich
was in part offset by irlcreases in its OREO and continge]lcy

reserves, totzling $155,000, and tbe paymcnc of a onetime

bonus of $92,000 [o ctrczin Bank of6ccrs zlld employees. The

after-t= effect of thest transactions added $545,ooo to 1996 net

income. Exclusive of these trmsactions, 1996 net incon]t would

have been $5,497,000. Net income for 1997 W* 12% &ad of

that amount. Basic earrlings per share rose from $1.38 in 1996

to $1.40 in 1997, The addition of $545,ooO to n<:t income, dis-

cussed previously, adde4 $.12 per b=ic common share to 1996k

earnings per share. Earnings per share - assuming dilution was

$1.34 for 1997, compared co $1.33 in 1996, In 1997, the

Corpor~cion paid dividends of $0.36 per share, In 1996, tbe

Corporation plid dit,idcnds of $0,46 per share, including a one.

time special dividend of $0,16 per share to pay the after-tzx gain

on the sdc of an OREC) property co the Corporation’s share-

holders. Exclusi>,e of this onetime dividend, divide,~ds per share

incrcmd 2096 for 1997, compared co 1996.

Return on average assets was 1.74% for 1997 compared to

1.79% in 1996. Return on average equity was 16,45?6 in 1997

versm 18.1696 in 1996, reflecting chc effect of the I>onrecurring

transaction in 1996, discussed previously,

Net Interest Income

A 5v0 incrca$c i“ average earning assets, from 1996 to 1997,

combined with a 10 bmi:: point de’rea.se in the aver:,ge yield o“

earning assets, ws primarily responsible of a $960,000 or x 40/o
rist in interest income.

Incercst expense incremcd 7?6 or $439,000 from 1996 to 1997,

The primary rczon for t~ is increase was a 21 Q/oincrease in CIIC

average ouc$randing balance of higher costing CDS.

Net intrrest income incre~cd 3Y0, while the net interest mar~n

decreased from 5.67% for 1996 to 5.59% for 1997,

Loan hss Provision

The pro,,ision for loan [osses amounted to $350,000 for 1996

and w= de=remed co $200,000 for 1997. The allowarlcc for pos.

siblc loan losses as a pcccer, tage of no”per forming Ioatls amou”r-

ed co 349% and 46 1°A z c,f Dcccmbcr 31, 1997 and 1996,

respccti,,ely, The rztio of tt,e allowance for possible lo~.n IOSSCSto

total oucscanding ioans w= 1.52% znd 1.61% at Dect:mber 31,

1997 and 1996, rcspcccivcl /.
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Other Income

Other income incrvascd 13°!0 in 1997 fru,n 1996 ICVCIS.Fee~ fur

Investment Msn~gemtnt and Trust servi=es i“crc=ed

$1,762,000 or 300/.. Net gains c,n the sale of mortglge 10.”s
increased $111,000 or 280/., due primzrily to all i],crc~e in the

sale of raidencial mortgage loan. to tht secondary mortgage

markcc, from $55,276,000 in 1996 co”lpared to $75,874,ooo

i“ 1997, The sale of a commercial OREO property, during [he

first quarcc~ of 1997,czused the elimination of the OMO rev-

enue scream and is the rca.son for the $702,000 or 65YU deccc~e

in OREO gains in 1997, compared to 1996, Other opera ring

income increa~d $88,000 or 15?6, primarily duc to fee ir?comc

of $134,000 earned by TCBM frt>nl July 1997 co December

1997. No such fees wert earned in 1996, Partially off$etring

these fees was a decre~se of $55,000 reprcsef> ring a nun-recuc-

ring fce for hrokering a loan transaction benveen WO ocher

finzncial inscicucions, earned in 1996,

other Expenses

Other expe”scs incrcmed by $1,859,000 or 10UA,in 1997 over

1996, Regular salaries i“cre~sed $1,010,000 or 13°/0,prim:lrily

due to meri[ increases a“d sta~tng addkions, including d,.

escablishme”t of TCBM in July 1997. Salaries-ocher, primarily

incejltivc based, increased $610,000 or 58%. Incre&ts in incc{>.

rive based compc”sacion, tied ro 01,cc2[I profitability of tbc

Banks lines of business anlounted co .$642,000, AI> In”cstment

Mznagcment and Trust incenrivc, Llreccly related to the acquisi-

tion of ncw business, i“creascd by [!96,000, Offsetting these

increases were dccrewcs of $92,000 for a “neti”le bu”u$ ~e]a[cd

to the no”.recurring gain on tbc sale of OREO in 1996 and i>

decresc of $36,000 in commissions paid to comn~issionrd resi-
dential morcgagc loan originators.

Employee benefit costs increased by $206,000 or 13%, due co a

$160,000 increase in actuarially cor]>putrd post-retircn]e]>c be]le-

fit costs and a $73,ooo and $87,000 increase in the respective

costs of social security tues and medicd beclefits, A $150,000

reduction in the cost of tbe Corporations pe”siorl expense l>.lr-

cial[y of6set these inc~e~cs.

The $319,000 or 26.h i“crea.sc i“ hrnicure, tixturcs and equip-

ment expense was primarily d“e to the additiond depreciation

on fixed assers and murtizacion of EDP mnversion costs a~soci-

ared with a first quarter 1996 conversion co an in-house EDP

system. Partially offsectil]g d,is in=rease ~wzsa $252,000 or 300/o

decrease in computer processing fees. During cbe firsr quartrr of

1996, rhc Bank =onverted to a“ in-hc,”se data processing sys-

tem. The cxpe”st for 1997 rcflecu a fuO ycark hentfit from this

conversion, compared to a p~rtial yea.?s in 1996,
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The cost of professional fees increased by $145,000 oc ZIOA in

1997, compared co 1996, The largest increase N,z in legal fees,

up $117,000 during 1997. The Corporation in<:urrcd $97,ooo
in legal fees, of a non-recurring nature, in conn<:ction with the

workout of two probiem loans.

Insurance, incl”dlng [hc Corporation’s business <:ovcrage prcmi.

ums and FDIC deposit insurance premiu~ns, increased by

$29,000 or 1fl”’bin 1197 compared to 1996 levels. Duting 1995,

the FDIC announced cbxr the balk insuran~ fund w% suffi-

ciently funded to pro~ide necessary coverage for insured bank

deposits and for a perod of time eliminated further deposit pre-

miums. Beginning in 1997, the FDIC reinstated deposit premi-

ums at a Iowcr rate th~n previously charged. During 1997, the

Bank paid z deposit insura”cc premium of $36,000, which ~,as a

$34,000 increase in FDIC deposit insurance prenlitlj~ls fio”l the
minimum premium of $2,000, paid in 1996.

Other operating expenses de’rca>cd $7,000 fro”] 1996 to i 997.

Included i“ 1996’s expense wa $155,000 of r?on-recurring

expenses related co the sale of the 0 WO propc rty, disc”sscd prc-
vio”sly, Exclusive of &es. Ilo”-rccurril>g expenses, ocher operlrir>g

expense increased $162,000 or 6n/o over 199&s similar expct,ses,

Income T-

The income tti provision for 15’97 tvs $2,950,000, or a 32.5%

effective rare, compared to $2,900,000, or a 32,4?I” effective
. . . . .

race, for 1Y?b,
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

Shareholder,.’equity

Common stock, par value $1,
authorized, 25,000,000 sl,arcs ajld 5,000,000

shares as of December 31 1998 amd 1997,
issued 5.067,078 sbzres u,d 2,519,379 shares

as of December 31, 1998 and 1997, respccci,,ely,

and .ucscandi.g 4,303,813 shares and
2,1 S5,609 shares as of Decetnber 31, 1998

and1997, respectrvcly. , . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ..,,.,.,.

Paid. incapical inex.ess .fp)rvaluc. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Unrealized in.csrmcnc appcc:iati.n, net .fdeferred income cues ., . .,

Re[airled earnings, . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ., .,.,.,,,

Lcsx Common st.ck in cress.q, ac cosc — 763,260 and 333,77o

skcc, at December 31,19%)8 and1997> respccc,vcIy ..., . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

T.cdshareh.ldcrs’ eq~iT, . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ,., .,
T.talliabilicies andshareh.ldcrs’ equi~. ,., . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

$ 19,810 $ 34.464
5,150 2,118

20,372 I 6,600

50,976 40,666
?R1.l R< 268,5582..,.-,

(4,100) (4,074)

277,085 264,484
17,0” I 1,790.-,-. .

2,069 2,039

1,086 1,086
271 25

2,812 938

$391>840 $374,21o

$88,937 $101,188
189,695 165,739

63,725 61>879

342,357 328,8o6

7,262 6,o55

:349>619 334,861

5,067 2s 19
2,478 4,589

100 62

_39,791 34:)46
47,436 4~,,,~

(5,215) (2,767)

42,221 39,349

$391,840 $374,210
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF lNCOME

$ 23,441 $ 22,083 $ 21,513

824 935 257

1,864 [,9[6 2>082

224 283 406

85 80 79

26,438 25,297 24,33?

5,976 6,929 6>490

20,462 18,368 17,847

150 200 350

20,312 18,168 17,497

9,272 7,698 5,936
1,169 1,124 1,081

1,780 1,.}78 1,280

818 509 398
224 379 1,081

0 0 7 ‘$

1,457 661 573

14,720 I 1>749 10,423

10,289 8,6o4 72594

2,375 1,655 1,045

1,908 [,791 1,585

1,392 1,365 1,537

1,817 1,565 1,246

1>283

811

1,069
822

991

677

569 584 836
466 390 376
354 322 355
213 188 159

7 9 97
3,211 2,473 2,480

24,695 20,837 18,!!78

10,337 9,080 8:142

3,480 2,950 2,900

$ 6,857 $ 6,130 $ 6,o42

$ 1.58 $ 1,40 $ 1.38

$ 1.51 $ 1,33 $ 1.33

4,327,297 4.3’9 2,162 4>385,o94

225,708 203,660 151,698

4,553,005 4,5!> 5,822 4,536,792
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STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(in t/,ol,,<,>th)

1998 1997 1996

$6>857 $6,130 $6,042

150 200 350
1,333 1,091 1,142

(132,175j (78,407) (56,9 15)

135,494 75>874 55,276
(818) (509) (398)
(224) (379) (1,081)

(20) 194 [161)
(405) — —

[30) 125 299
207 (3451 I .443

(368) 1,485 (713)

10,001 52459 5,284

(36,683) (30)013) (12,086)
11,415 15>200 \6,685

— 27 9,502
15,002 8,955 9,9(J5

249 1,879 ,3,462
(271) — (141)

— (2) —

10,954 26,462 I8,974

(26,206) (32,859) (40,831)

(1,737) (1>542) (557)

(27,277) (1 1,893) 4,913

11,705 22,622 1,837
1,846 3,00 I (16,255)

(2,012) (1,583) (2,017)
(26) (1.809) (54)

432 260 ‘,?,..
(2,519) (1,329) .

9,426 21>162 (16,3!)6)

(7>850) \4,728 (6, 199]

53,182 38,454 44,653

$45>332 $53> 182 $38,454

$3,861 $ 2,153 $ .3,540

5,769 6,835 5.047
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMEN~~SOF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the years ended Dzcember31,

Ner Income, . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Other comprehensive income

Unrealized hohiirlg gains (losses)

arising during the period

Reclassification adjustment for

gains included in net income .,

Deferred income tax (benefit) expense on

unrealized hol{lng gains (losses)

arising during the period

Comprehensive net income

(in thoustzridd

1998 1997 1996

$6>857 $6,130 $6,042

59 94 (320)

— (2)

(21) (31) 109

$6,895 $6>193 $5,829

The accompanyi?lgnot,,sarc an integralpart of the coxsoli&tedfinancial xtatemcnts.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
(~nthourdtid, PX<.pt$? sharesof C.?,,,,’”,, stock)

Shares of L1.realized

Common common Paid-in Rrcai,led Gains Trcasuq
Sc.ck issued St.ck Capital E2r,]i*]gs (Loss.,) Stock

., 2,493,200 $2,493 $4,363
,. — — —

. — —
— — —
— — —
— —

(4,975) (5) –(133)
15>660 16 215

2,503,885 2,504 4,445
,. — — —

— — —
— — —
— — —

(2,0;) ;) —(99)
17,500 17 243

$26,374 $2L2 $(1,539)
6,042 — —

(2.017) – —
— — —
— (213) —
— — ([38)
— — {38
— — —

30,399 (1) (1.539)
6,130

(1.583) : :
— — —
— 63 —
— — (1,329)
— — 101
— — —

2,519,379 2,519 4,589 34,946 62 (2,767)
— — — 6,857 —
— — — (2!012) — :
— — — — — —
— — — — 3s

2,525,339 2,525 (2,525) — _ :
— — 173 — — —

(57X) ;) —
(2,5 19)

(163) = : 71
28,1oO 404

5>067,078 $5>0: $2,478 — — —$39,791 $100 $(5,215)
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial sracemencs include the :Iccount: of

Bryn Mawr Bank Corp~racion (the c<Corporacion”l, The Bryn

Mawr Trust Company Ithe “Bank), Tax Counselh>rs of Bryn

Mawr Inc. (C’TCBM), Insurance Counselors of Bryn Mawr,

Inc. (“ICBM”) and Thr Bryn Mawr Trust Company (Jersey),

Ltd (“BMTC (Jersey)”),

The preparation of financial statements in con forrttity with gen-

erally accepted ac=ouncng principles ~GAAP”) requires man-

agem~nr ro make esrimates and assumptions that :Iffect the
reported amounts of certain assets and liabilities a,-,d disclosure

of contingent assets and Iiahili ties at the date of th,: financial

statements and the repc.rted amounts of related re,cnuc and

expense during the rep, rcing period. Actual result:, could differ
from chose estimates, F,>r all years p~ese”ced, all adjusting <:”cries

required for the fair presentation of the financial statements were

made. AfI such adjusrm:nis were of a normal recurring nature.

MI signifimnt intercompany transactions and acccunts have

hecn eliminated upon consolidation.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policiew

The accou]?ting policie,. of the Corporation confo :m to GAAP

and to general pracriccs of rhe banking ind”scry. The significant

accounting policies arc s follows:

Cash and cash equivalent

Cah and cash equivalents include cash and due fr(]m banks,

federd funds sold, and i“reresc-bearing deposits with otbcr

banks with original maturities of three months or less. cash bd-

ancrs rescn.ed to meet ,egulatory rcquirc”,e”ts of che Federal

Reseri,e Board amounted to $4,909,000 and $ 10,(;01 ,000 at

De=ember 31, 1998 and 1997, respectively,

Investment securiti~:

Management categorized all of its iflvestme”c securities as :,vail-

able for sale as pare of igs assetlliabili~ management strategy

si”ct they may be sold n response co chznges i“ ir~rcresc rates,

prepayments, and simiklr factors. Investments in d-iis classifica-

tion are reported ac the current market value with net unrealized

gains or losses, nrt of tk,e appli’able deferred tax c Fcct, being

added to or deducted from the Corporation? coral shareholders’

equi~ on the bzlance s[tect. As of Decembe~ 31, 1.998, share.
holders’ equity was i“crzased by $100,000 due co unrealized

gains (net of $52,000 in deferred income taxes) of $152,000 in

the investment securities portfolio. As of December 31, 1997,

shareholders’ equiiy was in’reased by $62,ooo due t<, unrealized

g.ir,s (IICI of $32,000 i,, deferred i~,co,llc cnrs)of $94,000 ill

the investmen[ securities portfolio.

Loan%

Inrer-t income on loans performing satisf~ctorily is recogrlized on

the accrual method of accounting. Nonpcr forming loans arc lw.lns

on which scheduled principal and(or interest is past d{te 90 days

or more or loans less than 90 days past due which are deemed [u

be problem loans by management, All nonperfornli,lg loans,

except consumer loans, are placed on nonaccrual sracus, and any

outstanding interest receivable at the time cbe loan is deemed

nonper forming is deducted from inrerest income. Tbe charge. off

policy for all loans, including nonpcc forming and inlplircd loans,

considers such 5actors s the type and size of the lw~n, the qu~lity
of d,. collatcrd, and historical creditworchxncss of d,e borro~,er.

As a part of its internal loan revie$t, process, management, when

considering making a loan an impaired loan, considers a number

of Factors, such as a borrower’s currc”c ti”a”cial screngrh, the

value of related collateral and the ~bility to continue to meet the

original conrraccual terms of a loan. Major risk clxssificac ions,

used to aggregate loans include both credit risk or the risk of

failure to repay a loan and concentration risk. .4 loan is nor con-

sidered impaired if there is merely an insignificant de12y or

shortfall in [h. amounts of payments. An insignificdj~r delay or

shortfall is a temporary delay in the payment process of a loan.

However, under these circumstances, the Bank expects to collect

all amounts due, including interest accrued at the cot>rrzcrwa[

intcresc rate for the period of the <Ielay,

When a borrower is deemed to be unable co meet the originxl

terms of a loan, the loan is consid~: red impaired. While all

impaired loans arc not necessarily co f,sidcrcd t,on-pcrh, raning

loans, if a loan is dc[inquenc for 9(3 days or more, it is consid-

ered both a “o”performi”g a“d in,paired loan, All c>fthe

Corporation’s impaired loans, ,.hi:h amounted to $1,718,000

and $3,524,000 at December 31, 1998 and 1997, respectively,

were put on a nonaccmd basis an,i any outstall~{[>g accrued

inceresr receivable on such loans, a.c the cimc they were put on a

nonaccrual scacus, was reversed frcm income.

Impaired loans are required co be measured based upon the pre-

sent value of expected future cash flows, discounted at the IoJn’s

initial effcctivc interest rate or at the loan’s market price or fair

~alue of tbe colkiterd, if the loan is collateral depe!ldent, & of

December 31, 1998 and 1997, no impaired loans were nlea-

sured using the present value of cx.pccccd f~,c”re cash flo,vs or at

the loan’s market price, Impaired loans measured by cbe fair

value of the loan’s collateral amoujlted co $1,718,000 and

$3,524,000, respectively.
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If the losn vduacic,n is Iex ch.n the ~ccorded taluc of the loxn,

m impairment reserve is established for the difference, The

impairment rescn.c is established by cirhcr m dlocarion of the

reserve For loan los;es or by a provision for loan Iosscs, depending

on the zdequacy oi” the reserve for loan losses, AI] impairment

rescmes established ill either 1998 or 1997 were dlo~tcd from

the existing reserve for loan losses. As of December 31, 1998 and

1997, there were ~)35,000 Ind $791,000, respectively, of

im pai red loans for which chect is a relzted allowance for 10Z”

losses, The total rel~ted alloivance for loan 10S on imptired loans

at December 31, 1!198 and 1997 was $300,000 and $226,000,

rcspecrively. lmp~ir,:d loans for which no loa [.ss aoo,va”ce xv=

allocated mlounted to $783,000 and $2,733,000 at Decrtnber

31, 1998 snd 1997 Average imp~ired lom during both 1998

and 1997 alnounted to $2,820,000 and $2,927,000, respectively,

When a loan is cl~died as impaired, it is put or, “onac’rual status

and a]y income sub~uenrly collected is ‘redited to the outstanding

principal halancc, Tbercforc, no incertst income was rcporced on

oursmding loans while co”sidercd impdrd in eirher 1998 or 1997,

Loans may be removed from impaired status ar,d rct”rntd co

accrual status ~vhcn & principal and interest mc,unts contmctually

due are reasonably assured of repayment within an acceptable

period of tin>c and there is a sustzincd period of repaymc”t per-

formance by the borrower, >vith a minimum re~tyment of at [cast

six months, in accordance with the contractual terms of interest

and principal. Subsequcnc income recognition woufd be recorded

under the existing terms of the loan. Based on tbe above criteria,

no loans considered impaired during 1998 were removed from the

impaired Iom statm ~nd $409,000 in loan bdan~ were removed

kom impaired SC.CU a“d rcrur”ed co a=crud sta[:us during 1997.

Smaller bdancc, hon.oge”eous loans, cx=lusively consuntcr

loans, lvhen included in nonperfurming loans, fi]r practic~l con-

sideration, are n“t put o“ a nonaccrud status nor is the current

accrued interest re’civable ~eversed from income.

Loan 10ss provisio%

The loan loss provisicn char~ed to operating expenses is based

on those factors which, in management’s judgcmc”t, deserve

current rccogllicion in estimating possible loan lc,sses including

the continuing evaluation of the loan portfolio ~nd the Banks

past loan lox experiefice. The allowance for possible loan losses
is an amount thxt mar~agemcnr believes will be adequate to

absorb losses inhtrcnt i“ existing loans,

Other reaf estate Owne&

Other rd titatc owned (“OREO”) consists of properties acquired

by foreclosure. These assets uc carried at the 10WCIof ‘osr or esti-

mated fair value at the time the loan is foreclosed less estilnated

cost co sell. The amout, ts recoverable fcom OREC) could differ

materially from the am,ounts used in wriving at the net carving

value of the assets becsusc of future market f.cturs beyond the

co”crol of rbe Bank. Cc,sts co improve the propcrry are ~pitalizcd,

whereas costs of holding thr property ~rc charged co expcrtsc.
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Deferred loan fea

The Bmk defers 41 Ioa” fees and related direct lw~n origination

costs. Deferred loan fees a,,d ‘OSCSarc generally capitali~cd md

amortized as yield adj”srmc”t ovtr the Iifc of rbc loan “sil]g cbc

interest method,

Premisa and equipme”ti

Premises #nd equipment arc stated xc cost, 1.ss accu”>ulatcd

depreciation. The provision k]r dcprcciarion is con>putrd on a

straight-line basis over the cst].nr~ted useful lives, as follow,x

premises--l O to 50 years, and equip mc”r--3 to 20 years.
Leasehold improvements arc being amorcixd over tbe shorter of

the estimated useful life or the ternl of the Ieue,

Maintenance and repdirs are charged to expcflse; majur ret]cwah

and bcttermencs are capitalized. Gains and losses on dispositions

are reflected in current operariot]s.

Income tax=

The Corporacio” tiles z consolidated Federal i“corn. tax rct”r”

with its subsidiaries. Certain iccms of income and cxpcnsc (pri-

marily loan origination fees, provisi”n for lea” loss a“d other

red estacc owned losses) arc reported ill different periods for tw

pc,rposes. Drfcrred taxes zrc provided on such trnlporxry diffcc-

cnces existing between financial and incon?e [m rcp<]rtitlg, sub-

iccr to the deferred tax asset rezlizacion criteria requirrd ur)drr

Statcmcnc of Financial Accounting Standards N.. 109,

“Accounting for Income Taxes” (“SFAS No. 109”).

Trust income

Tr”sr Division i“=ome is re=ogr(ized on the cash bmis of

accounting. Reporting such inc,.]mt. o!, zc~sh basisdms noc

materially affect net inc”me,

Recently issued accounting stimdards:

lnScptembtr 1997, Scatcmcnt,,f Financial AccotLnril>g

Standard No. 130, ’CReporril,g (Zompre[,cnsivc I”co”le’’~SFAS
No. 130”) wasiss~~ed. SFAS Nc,, 130est~blishes sc~ndards for

reporting anddisplaying compr<:hcnsive inconlcaod its conlpc,.

nents in financial sratemcnts, Comprrhensivc income includes

net income and severaf other items that current accounting scat,.

dards require co bc rec”g”ized o,ltside of net it,comc, such as

unrealized bold{ nggai”s and losses o“ availahlc- fur-sale i“vesr.

mt.nt securities i“ acco~dance wit h Statenlent of financial

Accounting Standwd No. 115, C~4ccountir,g for Certain

Invcstmcnts in Debt and Equiq Securitimfl. SFAS NO. 130is

effective fortiscd years bcginnirl{; aficr Deccmbcr 15, 1997.

The Corporation adopted SFAS No. 1300n January 1, 1998,

When firsc~pp[ying SFASNo, 1,30, financial stacementsforc~r-
lier periods that a[e provided for comparacivc purposs arc

requircdco be restated to reflect :Lpplicati onofcbrpro,,isions of

SFAS NO, 130. SFAS NO, 130m,ust beadopced at the begin-

ni”g of a business enterprise’s f,scd year.



In September 1997, S:accment of Financial Accolnring

Standard No, 131, “Disclosures about Segments c,f an Enterprise

and Related [nfornlati on” (’CSFAS No. 13 1”) was issued. SFAS

131 replaces Statement of Fin,ncial Accounting Standard No.
14, “Financial Reporting for Segments of x Busir,ess Enterprise”.

SFAS No. 131 require; publi= busi!,css c“rerprisv,s to ccporr ‘cr.

tain in forrnati~n abou: their operating segments in a completr
set of fimancixl statements to shareholders. Such Enancid infoc.

marion is required co l,. reported on tbe basis rh:,t it is ustd

internally by the enterprise’s chief operating decision maker in

m&lng decisions related to resource allocation ar,d segment per.

formance, SFAS No. [31 is effective for financial scacemcnm for

periods beginning after December 15, 1997. Th,: Corporation

adopted SFAS No. 131 on January 1, 1998, Corr~parative yczr

information is rcquirc2 co bc restated in accordance with SFAS

No, 131, if practicable In 1998, the first year of impltmcnta-

rion, SFAS No. 131 n,~ not required to be applie,i to inttrim

period financial stzrcm<ncs and the Corporation did not do so.

In February 1998, Stattment of Finx”cial Acco”ncing Standard

No. 132, “ Employers’ Oiscl”sures ,bOur Pension:; and Otbcr

Postrccire”~c”t Benefits” USFAS No. 132”) w= is,ued. This

statement supersedes disclosure requircmenrs of S :atements of

Fins”’ial Standards No. 87, “En,pIoycr~ Accounting for

Pensions”; Statement or Financial Accounting Stac,dard N.. 88,

“Employer< Accounrin2 for Settltmcnts and Curctilmcnts of

Defined Bcnctic Pension Plans and for Ttrmi”atiotl Bencfirs”

and Statement of Financial A=counring Standard No. 106,

“Employers’ Accounting for Postreticement Bencfics Other Tha

Pensions” (the “Superseded Statements”). SFAS No. 132

addresses the disclosure aspects of the Superseded Statements

and does not address m~auremcnc “r recogl,icion, as required

under the Superseded S~atements. SFAS No, 132, requires

employers to $Isclose some in fo~macio” not requir,:d pr~vi<,”sly,

while eliminating ocher requirements that were not considered

useful, SFAS No. 132 is effc’tive for fisd years b;ginnir~g after

December 15, 1997. ~~e Corporation adopted SFAS No. 132

on January 1, 1998. D~sclosures required by SFAS No. 132

should be provided for cdrlier periods presented for comparative

purposes, ““less that inlbrmation in “or re~dily av;ilable.

3. Investment Securities:

The amorti~d cost ad esrimxted market vzlue of investments,

all of which were clmsifi:d u available for sale, are ,= follow,$

U,S, Govc,nment

.nd lgcncics,,,..,,. $44,83s $ 99 $26 $4i,911 $44,91 I
stat,&.Olici<d

subdivisions ...,.., 4,612 62 — ~i,674 4,674
Other scc.rities,...,, 1,37.’ 17 — ,391 1,391

Total .................. $50,82* $178 $26 $5[),976 $50,976

<>bligacions of dIr
U.S. Governmc,It
ar,d agc.ties ..,,..., $35,030 $71 $29 $35.07? $35.072

s,,,, & poK[icat

s,!bdivisi.ms ,,.,.,,. 4.270 38 — 4,3(18 4,308
Other seccccicics..,,.. 1,273 13 — I ,286 1,286

Total $40,573 $122 $~~ $40.66(1 $40,66(>

At Deccmbec 31, 1998, scc”ri~ic>; bzving . book ,.]UC of

$10,500,000 were pledged 2S ‘ollatcral fur public fur,ds, trusr

deposits, and other p“rposcs,

The amortized cost and estimated market value of invcstn]ent

sec”riries at Deccmbcr 31, 1998, by conrraccual nvaturicy, are

shown below. Expected lnaturi tie:; w,io differ fro,,, c“,,trxc[~la[
mxturicies because borrowers may have cbe right to cdl or pre

pay obligations with or without call or prepayment pcntlties,

(i. them.nds) 19!38
%,iln.ted

Amortized Market

Proceeds fron, s,Iles of debt securicics ~Ic m;follow.
(i” *OU5.”A) 1998 1997 1‘),)(,

4. Loans

balls outstanding at Dccembcr 3 I are detailed by cztcgory as

follow%

All IOUS past due 90 days or more, excepr =or,su”ler loans, zrc

placed on nonaccr”al status. Nonperfornli!lg loans an>ountcd co

$493,000 and $1,169,000 at December 31, 1998 snd 1997,

respecti,,cly. Forgone interest on nc,naccruzl lo~ns was $230,000,

$298,000, and $144,000 in 1998, 1997, .Ild 1996, respectively.
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5. Allowance for Possible LOan LOSS*

The summary of the cl~~nges in the allowance for possible loan

losses is * follows

[i” thousands) 1998 1997 1996

B21*m.~,J*nu.,~ 1. .................. $4,074 $4.182 $3,652
ch.rge-”ff,.............................. (2431 (433) (268)
Rec,,ve,ies,,...,,,,,,..,.,...,,...,....,... 119 125 448’

Net rc..vcrie~ / (cha*e-olTs) .,, (124) (308) 180
Loan toss provision .,,,,,,.,.,,...,,.. 150 20U 350

B~~nc~.Dmembc, 31.......... .. $4,100 $4,074 $4,182

A summary of premises and equipmcnc at December 31 is as

foil.,”,,

During 1997, the Corporation paid off a mortgage l,lan on its

property l~aced at 10 Bryn Massr Avenue. & ofDectmber31,

1998, chc Corporation has borrowings outstanding of $668,000.

The borrowings are collatertized by a property with a hook value

of $1,682,000, The weigl, ted a~.erage inccrest r~te on the borrow-

ings w,as 8.500/. a“d 9.54, !6 in 1998 a“d 1997, respecti>e[y.

7. Disclosure about Fair VaJue of Financiaf Instrument

Statement of FinanciaJ Ac;ouncing Standards No. 10?,

“IXsc]osures about Fair KIUC of Kn2nckd JnStrument$,, (“SFAS

No. 107”), requires disclo:,urc of the fair value information zbotit

fi”ancid insrrumcnu, whether or nor re’”g”ized i“ rk,e balance

shccc, for whi’h ir is practicable to cscimare such vdut. In cases

where quoted market prices are not avtilable, fair vdus are based

on escimztrs using present value or ocher marker valur tcch-

niqucs, Those rcchniqucs are sig”ifica”tly affected hy che

zzsumptions used, illcludir,g the discount rate and estimates of

fiture cash flows. [n that ~egard he derived fair vd”e estimares

cannoc be subsm”ti~ ted by comparison to indepcndenr mzrkets

and, in many czses, coufd ,tot be refllmd in immednte settle-

ment of the instrument, SFAS No. 107 excludes certain financial

i“sc~ume”cs a“d z]] “on- fi”ancid inscrumcnts from its disclosure

requirements, Accordingly, the a=regace f~ir value ainc)”nts pre-

sented do “ot rcprcsen t the underlying value of the Corpo ratio R

C.zsh and cash equivafenm

The carrying amounts reporzed irt the balan=e sheer fur c~sh and

cash equivalents .pproxi,,r~te their fair WJIUCS,

Investment secuitie~

Estimated fair v~lues for invcsc”,c”r sec”riries are based on q“or.

ed market price, where available. If quoted market prices are “or

available, estimated ftic vafues are h~ed on quoted nv~rkct prices

ofcompardble instruments.

bans:

For v~riablc rate lams that reprice freq”e”dy a,,d ~bicb hx,,e “o

significant change in credit risk, estimated fair values are bwcd

on mrrying values. Fair values of u<rtain mortgage loans and

consumer loans are estimated using discoutltcd cmh flow andy.

ses, usin~ inrecesc rates c“rrencly being offered for loans will,

similar terms to bocrowcrs ofsimiklr credit qudli~. The escin>ar-

ed fair vafue of nonper forming Ioal,s is b~ed on disco u~]ted esti-

mated ash flows as detcrmintd by the internal loan review of

the Bank or the appraised market VJUC of the “nderlyi”g collar.

erd, as determined by independent [bird party appr:]isers,

Deposiw.

The estimated fair values disclosed Ifor no”incerest-b~ari”g

den~~nd deposits, NO\V accounts, :Lnd kf~rkct Rtte ~“d Nfa,kct

Rate Checking ac=ounts arc, by dcfinitio”, equal to the anloul]rs

payable on dematxd at the reporting date [i.e., their czrrying

amounts). Fair values for certificates of deposit are estimated

using a discou”ccd c~h flow calculation tlvat applies interest

races currently being offered on ccrcitiarcs to a sched”k of

expected nlonthly macuricics on the certificate of dcposir. SFAS

No, 107 defines the fzir ~,afue of derw~”d deposits as the A“IOUIIC

payable on demand and prohibits adjusting rstim~ced fair value

from a“y VXI”Cderived fro”, retai”ir,g thus. deposits fur an

expected future period of tif~~e.

Other liabilities:

Estimated fair values of long term mtjrtgages, collateralized by

one proper~ included in premises and cquipn]enr, arc b~sed c]r>

discou,,tcd cash flow analyses, using i.nrercsc r~tc~ curre,,rly

being offered for similxr types of loar,s and anlortk~ing the IOA”

under existing amoctizacion r~bles for each loan.

The following methods and zssumpcions were used co estimate

the fair vd”e of each CIWS{,f finsncid instrumcnu for which ir

is praccicabk to estimate th~t vduc
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Estimated fair values of the Corporation’s off-bd]nce sheer inscru-

mcnrs (standby letten. of credit and loan commictnents) =e based

on fea curren dy charged ro enter into similar 10Sn agreements,

tahing into account clte remaining terms of the q<recmct~ts ad

the counrerparties’ crc dit standing. Since fees and rata ch>wged

for off.bdancc shett items arc ac marker levels \vk,en set, there is

no macerid different between the stated zrnounr and =timated

fair }afucs of off- balmce shett instruments.

The carrying amount md estimated fair value of rhe Corporation’s

tinancid inscrumrnts .C Dccembtr 31 arc as follo~,rx

(i. &ousan&J
1998 L99?

~::y ~,~..~ C,,cv;ng Gticnatd
Fe, \,ahl, P.>n.”., FiJ \’du,

Fi,v,n,ial~cts
C.$ha“dduefrt,”lbank $ I9,81O $ 19,810 $ :,4,464 $ 34,464
1.ceresc.beacicIgdcp,,,itswicb

otl,e, banks ., 5,150 5,150 2,118 2,118

Fedtcd fu,,d> >nhf 20,372 20.372 [6.600 16,600

I.vcstme.c s.c.ritics ., 50,976 50,976 ‘tu,m 40,6<6
N,clrI.ns, ,,, , .,.,,,,,. ., 277,085 283,265 21,4,484 269,656

r.v,l fi)lan.i.i-=,, . . s373,393 $379,573 $3!,8,332 $363,504
Final.i.l!iakl;rie>:
Dtp<sirs..,,, .,...,,,,. ., $342,337 $342,465 S3;3,806 $328,M4
Ockerkahilitic, ., ., 668 706 694 719

T<,c,lfinm.id Ii,b:(itic, ,, $343,025 $34>,173 $32!1,500 $329,%3

Off. bdznce >hect ins?rumen. $ 92,920 $ 92,920 $ 8,1,607 $ 80,6”?

8. &plicable Federal IIIcome T==

The components of the net deferred tax asset= o FDecember 31

are as follows:

(i” thou.d) 1998 1997
D<fcrrcd tax resets

Loan 1.ss restive ...................................... $710 $659
Dc6rccd 1.s,) FCC. 22 34
Depreciation 53 15

O.herrcsemes .......................................... 353 410

1,13s 1,118
Defer!ed cm Iiahilitics

Llnreated apprcciacinn <>n
in.,,,”,,”, *cu,i, i., (52) (32)

Tord dcfcrrcd tax assets ............................ $1,086 $1,086

Tle provisions for federd incornc tzxcs cot]sist of dle follow,ifl~

(i. rJ.x..&) 19!)8 1‘>,)7 I ~1’)6

CurrenclY oavahlc . .. $3,500 $2,?56 $3SJGI

The sources of ten]porary differt?!lc.s resulting in deferred

federal income ttics and the .pproximace tax effect of each are

as follows:

(i. *.m..&) 1998 1997 1Y96

othc~ red estate own<d $ 0 $ 364 $ (8)
Lu.n 1“ss provis!on (s1) (68) 11I’ll
DcprcciatiorI (52) (83)

Pcmion mp.me,,,..,, ................. (:) ~) (3-)

Deferred 10,” feds., ................... 57 1> 27

Ocher,...,,...,,...,...,,.....,......,,...... O (71) 59

Tonal...,,..., ........................... $(20) $194 $(16[1

1998 1997 1996

st.cu,o~ i<ller.1tu r.re 34% 34~u 34?d,

(,in th.u=.ds)
Compured ,expcctcd

rax expc”sc $3,513 $.3,087 $3,04n
Bc,,efI, ,educ,i.m in us

rcsuhi”gfrom tz.exempt
incotnc.,,.,,,............................ (334) (113) (181)

Orher,. . . ................................. 299 [14) 41

Acc.*1 ta apensc $3,48[1 $2,95U $2:)00

I

No valuation allowance }vas recordedasofDecember31, 1998

and 1997.
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9. Pension and Other Postietirement Benefis

The Corpor~tion sp<nsors PUO pension plans and a postretir.ment brnetit plan for certain of its emplc,yees,

The following tables provide z rtconciliztio” of the changes i~l the placld benefit obligation and fair value of assets over the two-year

period ending Deccnlber 31, 1998, and a reconciliation of funded status = of December 31 of both YEZIS:

$LW23
701

900
50

861

(409)

$14,746

S17,527
3,580

—

(409)

$20,698.—

$1[),174

555
790
137

1,417
(450)

$12,623

$14,508

3,469
—

(450)

$17,527

Pension Benefim

1998 1997—— —

$ 5,952 $4,904

(6,476) (53579i
324 325

$ (200) $ (350).— _

$2,366
9

141

(1,390)
390

(189)

$1,327

$–
—

189
(189)

$–

$ 1,50,+
1)

165

—
876

(18!1).—
$ ,z,je~
——

$–
—

1tN
(189)

.—
$–——

Pomtirement Bencti~
—

1998 1997——

$(1,3271 $(2.365!
452 78

— —

363 1,931——

$ (512) $ (fj6)——

Amounts recognized in financial statements consists of:

Pzcpsid hcncfic co,c/(Accrticd benefit liab,li~) $ (200) $ (350) $ (512) $ (’156)
Inczngiblc ascc ....................................................... — 29 —

——
—

Nec amount remgnized . . . ...
——

$ (200) $ (321) $ (512)—— _ $ (4 56)——

The B~nk’s Supplcmentzl Employer Retirement Plan (the “SERP”) was the only pension plan with an accumulated benefit obligation

in excess of plan assets, The SERP’S accumulated benefit obligation >VZS$897,197 m of December 31, 1998 and $736,719 az of

Dtcembcr 31, 1997, There arc no plan asscrs i“ the SERP due to the t,ature of the SERI? The Corporatio,’s plan for posrrctircmtnr

benetits other chzn pcnsians also hm “o plan asscrs, The ~regate bel,efic obligation for chat plan was $1,,326,728 G of Dccenxhcr 31,

1998 a“d $2,365,556 % of Deembcr 31.1997.

The assumptions nscd in A. mczuremcnr of the C,~rporation’s benefit obligation arc shown on the foi[o}ving tlblti

Pension Bemekie Posmtiemcnt Bencfic

‘1 998 1997 1996 1998 19’?7—— [9’96—.
Weighted-aveWe Wnmptior,, as of end of ~ev

——

D.scount .acc........................................................ 6.75% 7,00% 7.50./6 6.7590 7.00?i,
Expected ,,,.,. on p[.InUS.. . 8.25% 8,00% n.oov” NIA

7,507.
N/,\

&c. ofcompcnsztion incrcue .,,.,.,,...,.,..,..,,,...,,... 5.00%
N/A

5.00% 5,0070 N/A h,l,l
Mediczl rrcmd tice ............................................... NIA

NIA
NIA NIA NIA N/,\ N/A

The assumed hdth care c~st rrcnd rat. used x.as 7% :Ind was graded down in 1% incremc”cs per year co a ultimate rate of 60/o per year,
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The following table provides chc components of net periodic cost (incomt) for the plans for years ended Oeccmbcr 31, 1998 and 1997:

PemsionBe.efim P.astretimm.mtBeneflIs

‘“ 199S I 997 1996 1998 ~~ 1996——

service ..s . ............................................................ ;“701 $555 $ 48’) $9 $ (1 $ 1(

l(ltercst e"s . ........................................................... 900 790 693 141 165 10(>

Expected rccurn.. plan assets (1,428) (1,144) (1,[)03)
.4in.rti2ati0n of prior service cc,st

— .— .

52 38 100
AMOXizartOn of tc.nsttiun ubKga<on (asset)

— — —
— — — 78 122 111

Amorci=tion ef r)et .cc.arid (gain) loss..,,..., ........ (375) (266) (179) 17 .— (77)- .—

Nc, periodic ber,cfit ‘.s( $ (150) $ (27) ~ $245 ~; =- .— — — —

Tbe prior service costs arc amortized on a straight-line basis over the average renlaining service period of acrivc pxrticiparlrs. Gains and

losses in excess of 10% 01’the greater of the benefit :,bligatio” and the market-related ,alue of assets are amortized ober the #verage

remai”i”g service period .,f active pzrticipa”ts.

I. Pereatage 1-r.cc.n[.~e
Semitiviq Analysis, PostretirementBenefiIs Point [“crease P.it,t DccIcm
fiFcct on toral.f,crvicc and interest cosc comp.nrnu ,.,. ... ,. ,, $10,154 $ (9,425)

Effect . . accumulated poscrecir,mcr~t benefit obligario. 80,602 (74,774)

Thrift Plan

The Corporation sponsor< a thrift and savings plan (the “Thrift

Plan”) covering substantially dl employees. The Thri k Plan pro-

vides for the Corporacio” to make inccntivc contribt~tions equaf

to the participants basic contribution, up to a maxir[lum of3Vo

O( compensation and pro~ ides for voluncaT employee contribu-

tions.

All contributions and interest earned thereon arc vested immedi-

ately Tbe Thrift Plan exrense was approximately $2.45,000,

208,000 and $180,000 in 1998, 1997 and 1996, respectively,

10. Stock Option P[w:

At December 31, 1998, the Corpor:,tion maincai”s a stock

option and sto=k appreciation rights plan (the “Stock Option

Plan”), whi’h is described below. The Corporztio,~ app(ics APB

Opinion 25 and related incerprrcarions i“ accounting fur the

Stock Option Plan, Accordingly, no compe[lsatiun cost hm

been remgnized for the Stock Option Plan. Hzd compensation

for the Corporation’s Stock Option Plan been dt.ccrmined based

o“ the f~ir vduc at the grant date for awzrds in 1998, 1997 a“d

1996, consis~ent with the optional prox:~sio”s of Stacemcnc of

Einancizl Accounting Standards No, 123, “Acco””ting fur Stock

Based Compensation”, che Corporation’s net income and ezrn-

ings pcr sbzre xvould have been redu,:ed to the pro Forft,a

amounts indicated below

1998 1997 {996

Net i.come as reporccd $6,857 $6,130 $6,042
Net [n<.me p,. forma $6,373 $6,003 $5,!146
Basicc.rni.~ per share

as reported $ 1.58 $ 1,40 $ 1.3s
Basic e<r.ings per sbuc

prof,>rma $1.47 $ 1.37 $ 1.32

The fair value of tach opcio” granted is cscima~cd on tbe dare of

the grant using tke Black-Scholes option pricing model with the

following weighted-average msumptic>ns used for gr~{,ts in 1996,

1997 and 1998: dividend yield of 1.81 percent, expected

volatility of 22.5 percent , expected life of seven yezrs and risk-

frec intecest rates of 5.6,7.1 and 6.5 pexcrnt, respccsively,

All option amou~lcs have been restzted to rcfltct cbc l- for-i

stock split, effective Scprember 1, 1998.
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The Plan had, prior to 1994, up to 216,000 authc>rized and

unissued or Treasury st,ares of the Corporation’s cc>mmon stock

resewed for issuance ultder the Plan. During 1994, the share-

holders’ approved an additional 217,720 shxres for issl,xnce

under the Plan The option co purchase shares of the

Corporation’s common stock was issued co key oficers. During

1995, the shlreholder~ approved the issuance of 80,000 shares,

20,000 to be granccd CC)outside directors, for 4 years after each

Annual Meeting. The >ption price will be set at the last s~le

price for the stock on the 3rd business day following the

Corporation’s Annual A{eeting. During 1998, the shareholders

apprOved ch~ issuance .Jf UP to 217,6136 sh*res ~wailable for
issuance to both emplo ,,ecs and directors. The price will be

determined by the Corporation’s Compensation Committee of

the Board of Directors at the time the option is g]-anted.

Options granted may ether be “incentive stock options” nithin

the meaning of the Intc rnal Revenue Service code, or non-quali-

fied options, Tbc stock options are exercisable over a peri.d

determined by the Boa,d of DIrcctors however, the option peri-

od will not commence earlier than one ye= or be longer than

ccn years from the date of che grx”c, The Plan pro%,idcs th~t the

option price ar the date of grant wil[ not he less thm chc fait
market value of tbe Corporation’s common stock. Tbe folh]wing

is a summary of transactions under the Plain

Shares Avail.blc Price Weigbred
I,ndcr for PC, A\e r.gc
@pci”n Opci.n Sb.,c Excrci$c P~icc

Balance at
Dcce”)kr 31, [995 3;0,920 62,520 $4,50. $9,.!0

~p,ions g~.,,c~d

$7.56
18,000 (18,000) $12.50 $12.50

Opfi<>,>,<Xcr,i,.d (3.320) $6.75. $8..:!5 $7.36
—

Bzlancc :,
D<c<,nbcr 31, 1996 357,600 44,520 $4.50.$12.50 $7.83

op,i.n~ g~*.tcJ 18,000 (18,000) $16.60 $16.60
Opti<>ns ~erciscd (3+,000) $7.00-$12.50 $7.43

Balm., z,
Dccc,,,ber 31, 1997 34%600 26,520 $4.50-$16>14 $8,26

op!~.$ ..,h~~,if.~ 217,606

optt,~n. ~r.n~<d 9“,400 (97,400) $24.50 $24.50
Options exercised (3! ,920) $6.75-$24.70 $10.28

Bda”cc ,,
Dccemhc, 31, 1998 405,080 146,726 $4.50-$24,’50 $12.06

Wcigbced-tverage rctnzining
COntrxtud life of

option, ~u~,t,nd[ng at
Deccmbcr31, 1998 ,. ... 5.14 years

The weighted-average fair value of options granted during 1996,

1997 and 1998 were $10.64, $13.99 and $7.39, respectively

Stock appreciation rights may be granted in tandcm }vith llon-

qualitied stock options. No stock appreciation rights have been

gra”tcd t,ndcr the Plan. The options bad a $.11 per share, $.03

per share and $.02 per share dilutive eff~~r on earnings P~r
share for the years ended December 31, 1998, 1997 and 1996,

respcccively.

11. Related Party Transaction

The Corporation bad loans outsts.nding directly to executive

offlccrs, directors and certain other related parties “f

$3,836,000 and $3,506,000 at Dtcember 31, 1998 and 1997,
rczpect ivcly,

Following is a summary of these transactions

(i. them.lfdr) 1998 ,99-

Bda,ce, bcgimning of ye.r !!3,506 $3,465
Addici.”s 1,173 549
Amuu.ts collecred (843) ($U81

Balance, end (If year :;3,836 $3,50(>
—

12. Instruments with Off-Bafance Sheet Risk

and Concentration of Credit. Risk:

The Corporation is a party to financial inscrunlents with off-bal-

ance sheet risk in the normal course of business to meet the

financing needs of its customers. ‘fhesc financial instrunleilts

in’ludt. commitments to extend credit and starldhy lccters of
credit, Those instr”~nenu involve, to $,arying degrees, elcmenrs

of credit risk in excess of the amount recognized in [hi consoli-

dated stacemc[lts of tinancid condition. Tbe contractual
amounts of those instruments reflc:cr the extent of involvement

the Cotporarion bas in particular <:lasses of finmcid instru-

ments.

Tbc Cocporatic,”’s exposure to crcdic loss in the event of tlonper-

formance hy the c“untcrparty to d,c financial instr.nlenc of

commitments to extend credit and standby letters ofcrcdit is

reprcsc”ted by the concractuzl amount of tbosr illscrulxlcnts.

The Corporation uses the szme credit policies in Ixvaking com-
mitments and condiciond obtigati(]ns as it does for o[]-bala!zce

sbeec financial instruments.

The number of exercisdhle shares at December31, 1998, 1!)97

~nd 1996 were 388,480 279,96o and 239,680, respectively,

with respective weighted average exercise prices of $12.25,

$8.39 and $7.71.
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Commitments co extend credit xe agreements to Ier]d to a cus-

tomer as longs there is no violation of any condici:,n estab-
lished in chc agreement. Comnlicmenrs generally hive fixed

expiration dares or other termination clauses and m;ly require

payment of a fee. Some cf the coinmitmcnts are expected to
expire ,virhout being dra,.vn upon, and the total cor(lmitmenr
amounts do “or necessarily represent future cash requirements.

Total commitments to extend credit at December 3”1, 1998 arc

$85,775,000. The Corpcracion cvaluaces each custcmer’s credit-
worth it]ess on a case-by-<:ase basis. The amount of collateral

obtained, if deemed ncccssaV by the Corporation c,pon exr~n-
sion of credit, is based o{, management’s credit e>,ahlation of the

councerpar~. Co[later#l ,aries bur may include accc,unts receiv-

able, marketable securities, inventory, property, plarIt and equip-

nlenc, residential real estate, and income-producing commercial

properties.

Standby letters of credit Ire condiriond commitmc :,s issued by
the Bank co a =ustomcc I“ora third par~. Such standby letters of

crtdirs xc issued co support private borrou+ng arrxlgcmencs,

The credit risk involved in issuing standby letters of credit is

similar co that involved in cxtendtng loan facilities to customers.

The collateral varies, but may include accounts recttivahlc, mar-
ketable sccuricies, invenc~T, property, plant and eqllipment, and

residential rezl estate for those commitments for }vhich collateral
is deemed nccessa~, TIIe Corporation’s obligation under stand-

by Ietccrs of credit and banker, acceptances 2s of Dt:cember 31,
1998 amounccd co $6,651,000 and $494,000, resp<:ccivcly

As of December 31, 1998, the Corporation had nc loans sold

with recourse outstanding.

The Corporation grants construction, commcrcixl, rcsidenti:d
mortgage, and consumer loans to ctlston~ers primarily in
Sot>rhez.srcrn Pennsylvania. Alrho,lgh the Corpc,r.lrion has a

diversified loan portfolio, its debtor+ ability co ho!lor their con-

tracts is substantially dependent up,~n the general economic con-

ditions of the region.

13. Msks and Uncertainti&

The earnings of the Corporation depend on the ~arrlings of tht

Bank. The Bank’s ear,lings are dependent UPOI1bt,rh the Ie$el of
net interest income and non-interest revenue stresms, primzrily

fees for trust services, that are earned annually. Accordingly, che

earnings of the Corporation are suk,jecc co risks and tlnccrrainries
surrounding both its exposure to changes in chc interest rate

en~,ironmenc and movements in financial markers.

h{ost of the Bank’s lending activity is with customers located in

southeastern Pennsylvania. knding is spre~d he~vcen commer-
cial, consumer and real estate relatccl loans, includ, t,g construction

le!lding. While these loan concentrations represent a potenrial

conce!lcration ofcredk risk, the Bank’s crcdlt loss cxpcricnce com-

pares Favorably co the Bank’s peer group crcdk loss cxpcrier>ce.

Significa”c estimates are made by .Ianagemenr in dccernlilting

the allowance for possible loan Ioss:s, cbe carrying >aluc of utbcr
red cstare owned and employee be]lcfit plxn expense.

Consideration is given to a varie~ of factors in est~blishillg rhtse

estimates, including current economic conditions, chc results of
the internal loan review process, delinquency st~tistics, borrou,-

ers perceived financial and managerial strengths and dIe adequa-
cy of supporting collzterd, if collateral dependet~t, or tht prescnr

value of future cash flows. Since the allowance for possible k?~n

losses and the carrying value of other real estate ow!led are
dependent, co a great excenc, on gcnerll and other economic

conditions beyond the B*nk’s control, it is ac Iezsc rcsonably

possible the tbe csrimxces of the allo>vancc for possible Ioat> loss.

es and the carrying T,alue of ocher real estate owned could differ

materially from currently reported w~lues in the [lear tern).
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14. Sdected Quarterly Financiaf Data (Unaudited): 15. Condensed Financial Statemen&

(In housands, acep:
per sh=, d.~1

Incec.st i,tcomc .,
1“,,,,s, ,Xpcn’c .,
Netinc.re~c income
Pxo.ision for loan )0ss<s .,
Income b,fo,c income taxes
NccincOmc, , . . . . . . . . .
E.IrningS p., c[>m,rn.n,harc
Earnings per common ;hacc

*ssuming dilution

(1. thousands, except
per share data)

[.cecescincome ,..
1.,.,,,, .Xpe,ls.
Net:.,.,.s,i,>.omr.,
Pruvision for 10>. losses .,
Income bcSort income cscs
Ncci.c.me
Ea,ni,,g, p<, con, mon sb.,c

Earning, PC, common ,1,,,,
=uming dilution

Q.a~crs ending 1998

3/31 6/30 9/30 12/31

$6,510 $6,570 $6,686 $6,672
1,528 1,514 1,507 1,427
4,982 5,056 5,179 5,245

25 25 37 63
2,616 2,498 2,65? 2,566
1,746 1,628 1,732 1,751
0.4o 0.38 0.40 0.41

0.38 0.36 0.38 0.39

QUaIt,IS ending I ‘J97

3/31 6/30 9/30 12/31

$6,125 $6,255 $6,482 $6,435
1,6S2 1,776 1,826 1,645
4,443 4,479 4,656 4,790

50
2,1:

50
2,0% 2,31 i 2.516

1,458 1,390 1,540 1,742
0,33 0,32 0.35 0,40

0,32 0,30 0,34 0.38

The condensed financial stzfements of the Corpor:lcion [Ftrcnc

company only) z of De=mbcr 31, 1998 and 1997, and fur
each of the three years in tht. period ended Dcccmber 31, 1998,

are as follows

Condensed Balance Sheets

Go, ,, . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 221 9167
lnvescme,,t, i“ suh,idiz,ics,

at cq.iy in net 2SSCCS 38,710 34,~J22
P,.”,iscs al,’1Cq.ipmenc,“., 4,o56 +,155
Ochcr,s,ets ..,,.,,,,.....,,. 72 —

Total ass,ts, , . . . . . . . . . . . . . $43,059 $4(l,lJ44

L,abificiesandshm,hold,,J cq(i,r
klortg~es payable $ 668 $6’)4
Ocberfiabtlific, .,, .,..,,,,,, 170 I

Totdlia&lities ..,,,..,,,,,,
Comma. stock, par v. I.. $1, aucho<,%d

25,000,000 shares and 5,000,000,,harcs
= of Dcc<rnkr 31, 1998,nd 197?,
rcspcctivcly,issued 5,067,078 shtrrs
and 2,519,379 sb.,es a of Dcccr,d,er
31, 1998 and 1997, respectively, tr~d
.utstmoding 4,303,818 shires and
2,185,609 ,bar~ as of D,cembec 31,
1998 and 1997, rcspec,ively,

Paid<” capital in excess OFpat V.IUC
Unrealized invmcment ~ppceciaciu<,

(dcpccciatiu”), net ofdefecred i.c.zz>e tree>

838

5,067
2,478

100

(,,15

2,519
4,589

(>2
Rerai~<d cac,)ings

..-
39,791 34,~J4b

Les common stock in rcea.V, ,ICCJSC
763,260 A,,.. and 333,770 ,ha,ts
M of Dccemher 31, 1998 ,.d 1997, (5,215) (2.7671

Totd shareholders, cquiy ., 42>221 3Y,34Y
Total Iiabilicia a~,d

shzrcb, alders .quiv $43,059 $4U,044

Condensed Statemenm of Inatme

(i. ?6c.n...nd9)

Divide,~d: fro., The BVn
Mawr Trust COmpA.y

I.ccresr tnd ocher income .,

Total operating income
Expenses, , . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Income before equity it,

“nd!st,ib”tcd income of
subsidiaries

Equiy~, Undis[ributcd inc.mc
ofs.bs~dt~ries

Income bcf.rc i“c.mc cues
Federal income tu benefit .,

Necincomc, , . . . . . . . . . . . .

1998 1997 1996

$4,012 $5,35!) $2,(11-
236 237 23?

4,24R 5,596 2,254
677 36u 445

.3,571 5,236 1,Xoq

3,136 852 4,16.?

6,707 6,088 5,971
150 41 71

$6,857 $6,130 S6,042
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Condensed Statements of Cash Hews
(in th.md) 1998 I 997 1?96

opcr,rin~ ~.rivi,i,,:
Netincome ,,, $6,857 $6,130 $6,1)42

IOSSCSof subsidi.rics
Tbc Brym fvft,.c Trwt Company (3,135) (852) (4,162)
T= COuns,lb,rs of Bryn Maw, (9) — —

The Bryn k{iwr Trust Cmpany
(Jersey). Led. 8 — —

Deprcciatiun expense 99 98
Ocher ...,.,.......,,, (1) (1) (%)

Net cah provided hy
opcracing .criviries 3,819 5,375 1,922

ln,,csrment in s.bsidr~rie (440) (75) —

Net cuh prot,idcd by
investing activirics (440) (75) —

Financing a.civitie.
Di,idends piid (2,012) (1,583) (2>017)

~p.ym~nt of m0rr~*8c dci, (26) (1,809) —

mpur<h~~. Qf ,re~suV s,.~~. (2,519) (1,329) —

Pr.cccds from issuance of st ]ck 432 260 93
Net cash used by fin,.cir,g

activities ...,,,.,.. (4,125) (4,461) (1,924)
(Decrctie) i:crc,se in cash ..,1

ah cqu, vale. cs (746) 839 (2)
Cab and cash equivalents at

bcgi””i”g ofyeac 967 ]28 130
C=h znd cash cq. ivdents ,t

cndofye,r .,,,,....,,, $221 $967 $128

These statcmencs should be read in conjunction wi :h the other

noccs related to the cons,> lidarcd f,nancial staccmenrs.

As a bmk and trust comFany subject to the Pemsylwmia Banking

Code (the “Banking ~de”) of 1965 as aended, the Bank is sub

ject co legal limitations as to the amount of dividenck that can be

paid to irs shareholder, rh: Corporation. The Bsnkirg Code

rcstricrs the payment of dividends by the Bank co &e mount of its
retained earnings, As of December 31,1998, the Bar,k’s retained

earnin~ amounted to $31,330,000, Therefore, as of Dc’ember

31,1998, dividcn~ available for payment co the Corl:wracion xe

limited co $31,330,000, Since the sole sours of di,itiend funding

for the Corporation’s dividend paymenti co its shar&,olders is

the Bank’s dividends, the Corpomcion is effectively li~niced =

to the amount of+l\iden& that it may pay co an am,]unc cqud

to the limits placed on the Bank, m dlscuxed above.
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16. Segment Information:

The Corporation’s principal operating segments are structured zround the financial srrvices provided its custonlers. The bfinl<ing seg-

ment gathers dep]sics and makes funds avtilzble for Iozns co im custon,crs, The Banks [nvestn]cnt .Ma”~gement attd Trust scgmtIIt

provid~s bO1h COCPO121Cand individual investment management and trust products at,d services, The BaIIks mortgage ba~lking segnlcnt
originates and sells residential mortgage Ioms to the secondary mortgage market.

Segment information for the years ended December 31, 1998, 1997, and 1996 is as follows:

$20,46:
15<

20,312

9.272

,,169

1,780

818

224

—

,,7,0——
14,!n3

,0,18’)
2,375
1,m8
3,457
6,919

24,9a

10,337

—

$–
—

—

9,272

—

—

—

—

—

—

9,272

2,863

386

549

422

898

5,118

4,154

236

$ 356
—

356

—

—

1,2119

783

—

$3
—

3

—

.-

. .

. .

T1,,031

200

17,83,

0

,,, >4

50.>

4.3

37’1

.

52,
—

>, j~~

5,85,

t ,347

1,237

2,543

4,730

5,715
—

4,693

(5)
.

,,,688
.

1—
—

—

7,698

—

—

—

-.

$337s — ,17,$,),

350
—

17,24{

o

,,0,,

458

.,5

,,”8,

?4

524

3,1>3

5,:,>4

,09

) ,“<,,

2,259

4.’>71
—.

$–
——

337

.

—

875

466

—

.,

—
—

—

—

—

—

—

—

,7”

19,953

1,169

571

35

224

631

2,6%

6,*9

l,69z

1,=2

2,793

5,003
—

17309

5,374

18,168

7,*I8

\,,2+

1,378

,09

.37,

—

,02

11,,90

8 ,~

1,655

!,?,, I

?,166

5,862

21,078

,,,0”0

—
——

$ 1,080

10[1+

s374,2tn

$ IM2

s I,Q,!

. .

-.

!>-

2,,,

.

.345

1““

- 1,079

1,992 1,079

—
1,345 .370

,35 96
93 —
45 ,
59 213

233 ,66
— —
645 493

1,037 <123)

_— 12311—

$103? $(3541——

4,7 5*O

117 [m

74 53

62 ,80

400 618
—

1,070 ,,55,
—

1,278 [*9)

— 12191

2,”6(> 204

118 ,,”
,79 4“

171 64

,ss ?17
.— —

“p.”>cs .,,...,,,,,,., [In
——

Segmc”t~,,,fi,A,c,

(i) 2!,
—. .— —-: .’fl ‘

64)()!1 $2,450 $871 %(43’11
—. ———.—. ee

6#% 25.4 1“,!<, .3,,,,

—

$10>3?

,00%

$391,840

$ 2,601

$ 1,4U7

Bv. Maw, B..k ~.,p.r.,i.. Tax C..mellorsof Bvn Mawr, 1“<., a“ d 1,,s.,,... Counselors of Bvr, Maw,, 1.,, have been a.Er<s:atcd it, ,40 Other,
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To rhc Board of D~recrors and Shareholders of Bryn k’lawr Bank Corporation:

In OUI opinion, the accompanyirhg consolidated balance sheets and the related consolidated statements of

income, comprehensive income, changes in shareholders’ cq”ity and of cash flo}vs presel]c fairly in aO

material respects tht fl”ancid position of Bryn Mawr Bank Corporzrion and its subsid~:,ries at

Dccenlber 31, 1998 and 1997, arid the resufts of their operations and their cash flows R>r each of the

three years in the period ended II,ecember 31, 1998, in con formi~ with gtncrally accepted accounci”g

principles. These financial state~.enu are the responsibility of the Company’s ma”xgem<:n~ our rcspotlsi-

hility s to express an opinion o“ these financial statcmc”ts based on our audits, We conducccd our

audits of these statements in accc,rdance ~,ith generally accepted auditing standards which require cblt

wc plan ~“d perform the audit tc, obtain reasonable assurance about whether tbe financial sratcments arc

free of macerid misstatement. k. z“dit includes examining, o“ a test basis, cvidc”ce supporting [be

amounts and disclosures in tbe financial scatemcnts, =sessing the accounting principles used and signifi-

cant ti.cimates made by managcnlent and cvaf”ating the overall financial stxtement presentation. We

befimc that our audits provide a reasonable basis for the opinion expressed above,

R~FT XXF

2400 Eleven Penn Cc”ter

Philadelphia, Pcnnsylvmia

January 21>1999
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P3UCE RANGE OF SHARES
1998 1997*

High-~w Quotations HI~-Low Quotations

High Low Dividend

Quarter

High Low Di,idcnd

B.d Bid Decl~d Bid Bid Declared

1s[ $27 $22718 $0.115 $18 3/8

2nd

$13 1/4 $0.09
$28 $24314 0.115 $177/8

3td $27718
$16 1/2 0.09

$24 0.115
4th

$22 15/16 $175/8 0.09
$27 1/2 $23114 0.12 $27 $22 0.09

The approximate number of hoh of recordof common stock m of Dtctmber 31, 1998 u,a~480.

The sh~resare traded off the oucr-thr-counter market, ad rbeprice inform~tiox

wa obtai?jedfiom Tbt Nationa[h~ocitition of SecuritiesDealers (NASD).

“ The 1997 high-hw qtiotatiom ~nd the diui~nd dechratiorts hauc bec~zrestatedto reflect the
effect of the Z-for-l stock split, efective September 1, 1998,
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